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REPORT OF THE BOARD
Principal activities and review of the business
The One Manchester Group was formed on 1 April 2015 when Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited
and City South Manchester Housing Trust became subsidiaries of One Manchester Limited, joining
together in partnership. Subsequently those corporate entities transferred engagements, in April
2019, to One Manchester Limited, before dissolving to leave 3 remaining subsidiaries: One
Manchester Treasury Limited, One Manchester Property Limited and One Manchester Developments
Limited. One Manchester Limited, the Group parent, is a Charitable Community Benefit Society
(registration number RS007018) and a Registered Social Housing Provider with the Regulator of Social
Housing (registration number 4808).
These group financial statements include the accounts of One Manchester Developments Limited, One
Manchester Treasury Limited, and One Manchester Property Limited.
One Manchester Limited is a unique social business that looks to innovative with new approaches and
partnerships to tackle the issues our neighbourhoods face. The Group manages a wide range of
neighbourhoods, and over 12,000 homes, across south and east Manchester.
The principal activity of the Group is the provision, management, maintenance and improvement of
affordable social housing. In addition, the Group is working closely with key agencies for the wider
public benefit of its communities; to improve and regenerate those communities and provide a
positive environment for people to live in. The strategic report considers these activities in further
detail.
The Group comprises three subsidiaries that have their own respective Boards of Directors. The One
Manchester Limited Board acts as the Group Parent and oversees the activities of these wholly owned
subsidiaries namely:
 One Manchester Developments Limited. A 100% owned subsidiary of One Manchester Limited
and a private limited company (company number 09246629).
 One Manchester Treasury Limited. A 100% owned subsidiary of One Manchester Limited and a
private limited company (company number 09456700).
 One Manchester Property Limited (company number 11384233) A 100% owned subsidiary of
One Manchester Limited. It was established to enable non-charitable, non-core activity to be
undertaken, which is likely to include property development for sale, joint venture arrangements
and providing property management services to third parties.
Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The Group has qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place for the Board members of One
Manchester Limited – Registered Social Housing Provider.
Compliance with Governance & Financial Viability Standard
The Regulator of Social Housing’s (RSH) Governance & Financial Viability Standard, (the standard),
was updated in April 2015 and reviewed in July 2017. This review emphasized the importance of the
board’s responsibility for health and safety of residents, to strengthen stress testing and to ensure
6
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that organizations were keeping live their Assets and Liabilities Registers; and also using the
information contained within them in strategic decision-making. The Standard was accompanied by a
new code of Practice, which provides guidance to registered providers, to ensure compliance with the
Standard.
The overall required outcomes of the Standard are:
 To ensure that there are effective governance arrangements that delivers the aims, objectives
and intended outcomes for tenants and potential tenants in an effective, transparent and
accountable manner.
 To manage resources effectively to ensure registered providers viability is maintained, ensuring
that social housing assets are not put at risk. The Standard requires registered providers to
assess their compliance with the Standard at least annually and boards are required to report
their compliance with the Standard within their annual accounts.
The definition of assurance means that this is not just an internal and external audit issue. Boards
need to determine how they are obtaining assurance to demonstrate to the Regulator of Social
Housing:
 A clear understanding of asset values, related security, potential losses and potential chains of
recourse. Note that boards need to know exactly what information will be required in the event
of distress and social housing asset exposure in order to value the assets without delay.
 Evidence of application of the principles.
 The assurance they receive on quality of records.
After being awarded G1 V1 status in an In Depth Assessment carried out by the regulator in July 2017,
our top status scorings were re-confirmed by the regulator’s ‘stability check’ in November 2020. A full
In depth Assessment was carried out in July 2021 and the results of this are awaited.
Compliance with the regulator’s revised Governance and Viability Standard was assessed by the Board
in July 2021 for the year ending 31st March 2021. The Group complies in full with the Standard.
The Group has also adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance (2020). and
complies with this code, with the exception of the two instances described on pages 36-37. A selfassessment against the code of governance is carried out annually.
Going concern
The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its future
development are set out within the Strategic Report. The Group has in place long-term debt facilities
that provide adequate resources to finance the committed reinvestment and development
programmes, along with the Group’s day to day operations. The Group also has a long-term business
plan that shows that it is able to service these debt facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’
covenants.
The impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and the Government’s decisions on social distancing have had a
significant effect on activity during 2020/21. However, extensive work was undertaken to revise the
budget for the year, including the formation of an efficiency plan which, combined with other
measures, resulted in the delivery of a £11.8m surplus.
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Robust business planning and stress testing was undertaken and approved by the Board during the
period, and Board have considered a wide range of scenarios and mitigations to manage financial risk.
Continuous cash flow forecasting also enables the business to review financial stability on an ongoing
basis.
Given the strength of the balance sheet, with significant cash resources and further liquidity, the Board
consider that, while some uncertainties continue, they do not pose a material uncertainty that would
cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board, therefore, consider it
appropriate for the accounts to be prepared on a going concern basis.
Assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
The Board is the ultimate governing body and is responsible for ensuring that an adequate system of
internal control is in place and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system of internal control is
designed to manage risk and provide reasonable assurance that key business objectives will be met. It
also gives assurance to the preparation and reliability of financial and performance information and
the safeguarding of the Group’s assets. The Board, however, recognises that no system of internal
control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate all risk.
Risks may be defined as those factors which may adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives. The internal control framework manages and mitigates risks by identifying those risks and
ensuring controls are in place.
The key elements of internal control include:
 Corporate governance arrangements including the adoption of the National Housing Federation
Code of Governance (2020);
 Board approved terms of reference and delegated authorities for Audit and Risk Committee,
ED&I Committee, the Place Committee, Remuneration and Governance Committee and Growth
Committee;
 The Board agreed a revised Strategic Plan 2020/21 at its meeting in March 2020, updated to
reflect the progress made in the previous plan and the strategic activities for 2021. A review of
strategic achievement measures has taken place and there are five priority areas; Strategic
influence; Customer focus; Thriving communities; Growth; Health organisation.
 Strategic and business planning processes within which the Board approves strategy and
business plan objectives supported by a performance monitoring framework;
 Development, monitoring and approval of the long-term financial business plan updated with
the annual budgeting cycle and in response to all significant environmental changes that
includes robust stress testing and assessment of key risks and respective mitigation analysis;
 Separately, the Business Plan was reviewed by the regulator as part of the In Depth
Assessment process and confirmed our t o p ratings of G1/V1 during July 2017. The Regulator
reconfirmed G1/V1 in November 2020 as part of its normal stability review.
 The review and approval of annual budgets by the Board; review of results against the approved
budget, and revised forecasts prepared at regular intervals. The annual budgeting cycle informs
and is informed by the long term financial business plan when setting the overall resources of
the organisation, in both the short and medium term;
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 Board approved annual Treasury Strategy to control exposures in connection with Treasury
management activities and regular monitoring of loan covenants and requirements for new loan
facilities;
 Performance indicators generated monthly to identify trends are reported to Board quarterly to
monitor progress towards objectives and to identify changes that require intervention;
 A Delegatory framework incorporating Financial Regulations and Scheme of Delegation;
 Board approved a revised Value for Money strategy in May 2021, reinforcing our commitment to
the Group’s economy, efficiency and effectiveness objectives. Efficiency plans are being
reviewed and will be presented to the November 2021 Audit & Risk Committee and then Board.
 A development appraisal group reviews the plans and financial appraisals of all proposed major
investments in new properties and place regeneration initiatives that are subject to individual
approval by this group, prior to approval by the Executive Leadership Team, Growth Committee
or Group Board and as defined within the Delegatory Framework;
 Our Risk Appetite is reviewed annually by the Board ensuring an up to date risk management
framework is in place for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group;
 The Board approved the implementation of Financial “Golden Rules” to support quantification of
the Group’s financial risk appetite to augment covenant headroom monitoring and stress testing
at its meeting in March 2017. The 2021/22 business plan was also reviewed against these Golden
Rules as part of the Board adopting the updated plan in March 2021;
 As part of its Covid-19 governance response Board reviewed and updated its Golden Rules (with
the advice of Savills) at its June 2020 Board meeting.
 Audit and Risk Committee develop and approve a risk based internal audit plan receiving internal
audit reports, tracking implementation of recommendations. The Audit & Risk committee uses
the services of Price Waterhouse Coopers to provide internal audit services;
 Clearly defined management responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and control of
significant risks;
 Review of strategic risks at each meeting of the Board and bi-annually by the Audit & Risk
Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee also receives updates on the internal control
framework bi-annually;
 Formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies for all staff;
 Board approved whistle blowing policy;
 Board approved probity policy;
 Programme of Board training is on-going;
 Board approved Anti-Money Laundering Policy and an Anti-fraud policy, together with a Fraud
Response Plan, including tenancy fraud, covering prevention, detection and reporting of fraud
and the recovery of assets;
 A comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) that undergoes annual scenario testing with all
relevant staff, facilitated by an external specialist- the BCP supported the One Manchester Covid19 response and a lessons learnt review has informed our current emergency response
arrangements including an additional senior management daily support rota;
 Participation in the Greater Manchester civil contingencies response planning made up of other
housing providers in the region, Manchester City Council and representatives from all emergency
service providers.
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The effectiveness of the controls is assured by:
 Independent assurance by internal auditors as to the existence and effectiveness of the risk
management activities described by management;
 Board / Audit & Risk Committee review and approval;
 External audit;
 External regulatory scrutiny, including In Depth Assessments, and other reports, ; and
 Review and assurance by management.
The internal control framework, the risk management process and fraud register are subject to regular
review by internal audit, which has responsibility for providing independent assurance to the Board via
its Audit & Risk Committee. All reports to Board and Committees consider risk and risk appetite and
separately the Board and Audit & Risk Committee considers the overarching risk strategy, map and
controls bi-annually ensuring quarterly review.
A fraud register is maintained and is reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.
During the year, there were no dismissals in relation to fraud. In addition, instances of fraud in relation
to tenancies have been investigated and, where fraud has taken place, these are actioned and
recorded.
The Audit and Risk Committee has received the Chief Executive’s annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control for the Company and the annual report of the internal auditor, and has
reported its findings to the Board. The report concluded that controls were good and worked
effectively.
The Board confirms that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group. This process has been in place throughout the year under review
and up to the date of the Annual Report and Financial Statements and is reviewed at least quarterly by
the Board. The Board has responsibility for the Group as a whole.
Auditor
All of the current board members have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any information needed by the Association’s auditors for the purposes of their
audit and to establish that the auditor are aware of that information. The directors are not aware
of any relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware.
BDO LLP has expressed their willingness to continue. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO
LLP as auditor of the Association will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
By order of the Board

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary
15th September 2021
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STRATEGIC REPORT
One Manchester – our story
One Manchester is a provider of housing and community services. Formed in April 2015 from a merger
between two of Manchester’s largest housing associations – City South Manchester Housing Trust and
Eastlands Homes Partnerships Limited, we currently own and manage around 12,000 homes in central,
south and east Manchester.
As an experienced and trustworthy landlord, we provide good quality homes that are safe, secure,
warm and affordable, and we are proud to be known as a housing association.
One Manchester’s customers have access to a range of tenure options. We provide social housing for
people who cannot currently afford to rent at market rates. We also offer homes to rent at market
rates for when people can afford this option. For those looking to purchase their own home, we offer
schemes such as shared ownership and rent to buy.
We also believe that our responsibilities go much further than providing good quality, affordable
homes. Our view is that housing associations are all about place making. We exist to play an active role
in developing our communities. We help people manage their money, find work, start-up businesses
and stay healthy and well. In directing our attention to the needs of individual people – the very
reason we exist – we aim to create places that will thrive and prosper.
Our vision is:
To lead, deliver and inspire social innovation across Manchester and the region. We will be a trusted
and dynamic business, providing clear direction, that creates positive change in our areas. We will
provide quality homes and shape services that improve people’s lives, attracting further growth and
investment. We will use our skills and resources to build resilient, thriving communities.
Strategies to achieve our purpose
One Manchester was formed to face the challenges and maximise the opportunities in the city and for
the people who live here.
Our current strategy outlines five corporate priorities that have been the focus in 2020/21 and into
2021/22. These will ensure delivery on promises to staff, customers, communities and partners so that
everyone connected to One Manchester can benefit from the city’s growth and success. The detail
below is a Review of Strategic Achievement Measures against the five corporate priorities for 2020/21.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
VFM sits across all our strategies and our multi-year savings plan, and asset and growth plans are
detailed in the VFM section of the report. VFM also is a recurrent theme in the review below,
incorporating the individual contribution of each priority to the business as a whole.
Strategic Priority 1 – Strategic Influence
During the year One Manchester achieved progress as follows against this priority area:






Completed work to represent RP voice and contribution on the MCC VCSE funding strategy
group and align our community funding
Revisited the RSA 'Making Home' action plan to agree areas to take forward
Approved DWP Kickstart gateway for 13 GM RPs in addition to OM offer
Fed into MCC and GM economic recovery strategies through GMHP and MHPP
Lead for Place Theme on the GMHP, Work and Skills Board, Wellbeing of Future Generations
Movement

Strategic Priority 2 – Customer Focus
During the year One Manchester achieved progress as follows against this priority area:






Completed an audit of the big six areas of compliance which has led to improved performance
and implementation of C365
Completed service improvement activities from the Independent Living review
Established a £500k hardship fund and developed a set of criteria for the community aspect of
the fund
Carried out works to analyse and understand our Customer programme and survey
Delivered “Customer in Need” calls to all customers provided support and reassurance

Strategic Priority 3 – Thriving Communities
During the year One Manchester achieved progress as follows against this priority area:





Completed a review of One Manchester owned assets for value, community use, health &
safety compliance
Reviewed and adapted the Employment and Skills service to respond to COVID-19
Developed environmental planting approach to key green spaces across One Manchester areas
in partnership with MCC, Sow the City and Groundwork
Delivered a new approach to community groups, due to the pandemic, which has increased
community engagement
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Strategic Priority 4 – Growth
During the year One Manchester achieved progress as follows against this priority area:






Review of the growth strategy to reflect outcomes in context of CV-19 BP capacity
Continued progress in the HE programme, with bids submission due this week.
Development Health Check completed and action plan in progress
Despite challenges, sales and lettings continued through deployment of contactless and virtual
methods
Explored and utilised virtual methods of engagement to maintain on track to achieve RIBA
stage 2 for Grey Mare Lane

Strategic Priority 5 – Healthy Organisation
During the year One Manchester achieved progress as follows against this priority area:







Stress tested and updated the long-term business plan including reviewing mitigations to
stresses
Developed a COVID compliant Facilities Management strategy for offices, buildings and
community use facilities
Reviewed and analysed the impact of COVID 19 on certain groups, customers and colleagues
and provided focussed support
Fully reviewed the Governance department including risk and implemented a new team
structure
Created the Shaping our Future business change programme and completed the “discovery”
stage of the programme for presentation to Board
Reviewed the growth strategy to reflect new and revised outcomes in the context of COVID-19
and the business plan capacity.
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COVID-19
The World Health Organisation classed Covid-19 as a pandemic on 11 March 2020. Following that
announcement the UK Government introduced various measures to address the impact in the UK,
resulting in lockdown from 23 March 2020. We adopted a number of measures to ensure the safety of
tenants, staff and business partners during this time. We undertook the following:








With the social distancing measures, we decided to postpone major component replacements
such as kitchens and bathrooms and stop non-emergency repairs;
Construction was halted in line with Government recommendations to protect our staff and
business partners. All uncommitted schemes were put on hold;
The programme of gas safety testing continued, balancing the risks of carbon monoxide
poisoning against the need to protect residents and staff from COVID 19;
Provided regular contact with vulnerable tenants to ensure that they had access to food and
required medicines with support provided from deployed resources from across the business;
Provided guidance to those residents who faced financial difficulties and established a £0.5m
hardship fund working in conjunction with Greater Manchester partners;
Adopted working from home for all colleagues where possible. Where colleagues were not
able to work from home, they were re-deployed where appropriate to provide support to
other areas of the organisation including reaching out to our vulnerable tenants.
We undertook further and robust stress testing of our financial plans supported by our
independent Treasury Advisors Savills.

These measures, inevitably, had an impact on the performance of the organisation in a number of
areas:
 During the year rent collection was tracked on a weekly basis, and while there was an increase
in the level of arrears of c£0.5m payment levels returned to pre-COVID levels by the end of the
year.
 Increased void losses of £0.2m were driven by the timing of the handover of the Clockworks
and Oasis development schemes and the social distancing requirements introduced by the
Government, giving a total of £1.1m for the year, representing 2% of the annual debit;
 Disposals through Right to Buy and Right to Acquire were lower than budgeted in terms of
volume at 63 against a budget of 116, however, as the values were higher than anticipated a
surplus of £4.9m was generated, which was £1.3m higher than budgeted.
 Where colleagues have not been able to be redeployed the Government Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme has been accessed, funds of £162k were received through this scheme.
 COVID-19 working restrictions have impacted both development and repairs activity, with the
development programme being re-phased in the revised Business Plan;
 Major repairs of £8.6m were delivered, with internal works being switched out for external
works in the September 2020 budget update to allow for COVID-19 working restrictions;
 Routine maintenance activity has slowed, with only emergency work completed during the
nationwide lockdown, as restrictions have been lifted higher activity levels have been
experienced, with an additional backlog to process in 2021/22;
 Expenditure on PPE has increased to ensure the safety of those staff members that do need to
enter residents properties, and this is reported separately in monthly management accounts;
 An additional expenditure of £0.3m in IT equipment to facilitate remote working.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Business model
The One Manchester Group was formed 1 April 2015 when Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited and
City South Manchester Housing Trust became subsidiaries of One Manchester Limited. One
Manchester Limited, the Group parent, is a Charitable Community Benefit Society and an asset owning
Registered Provider of Social Housing. The Group operates within the City of Manchester.
The One Manchester Strategy is overseen and directed by the Group Board and Executive Team. The
strategy is delivered though the operating model of One Manchester Limited providing Executive
Management, Business Strategy, Housing Management, Asset Management, Growth and Support
Services to the Group’s registered provider of social housing. Property services are delivered in-house,
with a directly employed team responsible for gas safety, responsive maintenance, grounds
maintenance and estate cleaning.
The One Manchester Group adopted an efficient treasury structure upon its formation of the treasury
vehicle, One Manchester Treasury Limited, which provides the private finance facilities for the Group.
This structure allows for a more efficient use of the Group’s security and private finance facilities
enabling more efficient borrowing costs. The loan facilities and lending covenants apply to the Group’s
subsidiary registered providers and One Manchester Treasury which collectively form the loan facility
obligors.
The treasury section of the financial review of the year ended 31 March 2021 details the current,
historic and undrawn facilities. Since the merger between the original group subsidiaries the new
homes development growth aspirations have more than doubled.
One Manchester Developments Limited is the vehicle through which the Group develops new housing,
performing the role of principal development contractor for the Group, ensuring efficient
development of new homes in accordance with our growth and diversification strategic priority.
To address the lack of housing supply in the region we are a leading partner in a joint venture between
RPs and the GMCA to set up an investment fund to deliver over 500 homes for sale.
The total contribution to be invested by One Manchester is £2.99m with the contributions forecast to
complete at the end of the 2022/23 financial year.
In addition, One Manchester is a member of the GM Homes SIB Partnership which works on
homelessness in Greater Manchester with Homelessness Support LLP and Trafford Housing Trust Ltd.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
The Group (for the purposes of statutory reporting in 2020/21) comprises:





One Manchester Limited, the Group parent and a Registered Social Housing Provider.
One Manchester Developments Limited
One Manchester Treasury Limited
One Manchester Property Limited

One Manchester Property Limited (Company number 11384233) was incorporated on 26 May 2018 as
a wholly owned subsidiary of Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited with general commercial objects. It
was established in order to enable potential non-charitable, non-core activity to be undertaken, which
will include property development for sale, joint venture arrangements and providing property
management services to third parties.

One Manchester Group Structure:
The graphics below shows the group structure and the relationships between the members as at the
balance sheet date of 31st March 2021.

A Charitable CBS (Community Benefit Society) conducts business on behalf of its community and
invests its profits into the Society for the benefit of its community.
A CLS (Company Limited by Shares) is a limited company which gifts aids its trading surpluses in a tax
efficient manner.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Financial review of the year ended 31 March 2021
Overall, the Group, before actuarial gain, generated a surplus of £11.8m (2020: £12.7m) for the
period, against a budgeted surplus of £13.5m. The main factors contributing to the variance of £1.7m,
excluding the financial accounting implications of FRS102 were as follows:
 Income streams were £0.3m lower than budgeted with £0.2m of this due to higher than
budgeted void losses. The impact of COVID19 meant that property relets were delayed along
with letting of newly constructed properties.
 Management costs were £0.6m higher than budgeted with £0.5m being allocated to assist and
support local communities through additional welfare provision. Additional costs of £0.6m were
also charged to reflect movements in pension valuation assumptions.
 Changes to the programme of major works and additional responsive repair demands, again
responding to the pandemic, resulted in an additional spend of £1.5m.
 Depreciation charges were higher than budgeted by £0.7m due to higher levels of capitalisation
than anticipated from development properties under construction transferring into completed
property.
 Surpluses on the sale of Right to Buy and Right to Acquire properties were higher than budgeted
by £1.3m
 Interest charges were lower than budgeted by £0.8m as the Group continued to take advantage
of the reduced borrowing rates from recent deals.
Group Financial Results
Highlights of Comprehensive Income
Turnover
Operating costs
Operating surplus
Surplus after taxation, before actuarial gain
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Highlights of Financial Position
Social housing properties Net Book Value at cost
Non-social housing properties at valuation
Cash at bank and in hand
Net current assets
Debt drawn
Revenue reserve
Number of homes in management
Social housing
Market rent
Total

2021
£'000
59,624
(44,373)
20,191
11,839
(6,960)
4,879

2020
£'000
60,268
(45,983)
18,551
12,673
7,276
19,949

£'000
231,006
43,988
50,493
37,648
(185,050)
33,906

£'000
208,366
39,019
40,038
24,918
(155,943)
29,027

11,878
315
12,193

11,938
306
12,250
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
The Group Statement of Comprehensive Income is on page 63.
Company Financial Performance
The company achieved a surplus for the year of £11.8m largely in line with Group performance.
Group Financial Performance
Group turnover reduced in the year by £0.6m, to £59.6m. The reduction results from lower income
generated from shared ownership property sales, being £1.8m less than the previous year. This is
specific to the schemes underway each year. This was offset by higher income from social housing
rents of £0.7m at £48.2m.
Operating costs were comparable with the year ended March 2020 with a marginal increase overall,
although there were variations between expenditure groups which offset overall. The key variances
were:
 An increase in service cost expenditure of £0.3m, incorporating inflations and cost provision to
new properties handed over.
 An increase in management costs of £0.6m which include a £0.6m charge to reflect changes to
actuarial assumptions made by the pension scheme administrators at SHPS and GMPF and also
investment in a hardship fund of £0.5m, offset by spend reductions elsewhere.
 A reduction on planned and routine maintenance of £0.5m. A lower expenditure for the year
was budgeted in line with business plan assumptions, reflecting the significant investments
carried out in recent years.
 An increase to the major repairs programme of £0.2m, which is specific to the investment
schemes underway.
 An increase in the cost of providing for bad debts, with an additional £0.2m being provided.
 £0.7m reduction in Development Costs not Capitalised reflecting the elements of the
development programme which did not progress during the year.
Costs of sales from Shared Ownership property sales fell year on year by £1.7m, in line with a
reduction of handovers from the development program.
The total Comprehensive Income for the year was £4.9m (2020: £19.9m) for the year. The surplus
generated in 2021 was £0.8m lower than the March 2020 position. However, the key difference
between the two years is that in the year ended March 2020 there was an actuarial gain of £7.3m on
the pension schemes, whereas in the year ended March 2021 there was an actuarial loss of £7m, an
overall difference of £14.3m.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Cladding & Fire Safety
Following the tragic fire and loss of life at Grenfell Tower in the London Borough of Kensington and
Chelsea on 14 June 2017, the Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) required all
registered providers of social housing to identify high-rise buildings that were clad with similar
materials. One Manchester Group has sixteen high-rise developments, of between nine and sixteen
floors, with Aluminium Composite Material (ACM) cladding.
Detailed tests were undertaken during July and August 2017; including the systems present on the
Group’s medium and high-rise properties. The outcome of these more detailed tests reported that
thirteen of the blocks did not meet the standard and three blocks passed, adequately resisting the
spread of fire to the standard required by the current building regulations. Of the three towers that
originally appeared to pass the tests, it has subsequently been identified that the fire barrier
arrangement was not comparable with the system that passed the test, and the decision was taken to
replace the areas of ACM cladding on these three blocks.
The Group is committed to ensuring the safety of its customers and the Board resolved to install
sprinklers and fire alarms to it medium and high-rise buildings to ensure the fire safety of its
customers. The cladding on all sixteen blocks has now been replaced with a new cladding system. The
programme has been funded from internal resources with £6.9m support from the Government (out
of a total predicted programme spend of £15.6m).
Fire alarm installation has also been completed to all communal areas. Heat detectors have been
installed to approximately 80% of flats at blocks, with the remainder being accessed on a programme
that will be supported by in-house resource where access is difficult.
At the start of 2020, a programme commenced to install sprinklers to the high-rise tower blocks. This
is a £3m programme, to be completed over 3 years. The programme was delayed following the COVID19 lockdown measures. The programme restarted in September 2020 and continues into 2021/22.
Group Financial Position
The financial position remains strong with social housing properties shown at historic cost of £231m
(2020: £208.0m), representing an increase of 11%.
This is due to additions of £26.6m, capital work to existing properties of £4.9m, offset by the property
disposals through RTB and RTA discussed above and depreciation. This compares to an underlying
valuation, on an Existing Use Value – Social Housing basis, of the Group’s properties used as security of
£437.2m at the end of the period. This valuation does not include those properties owned, developed
or acquired but not currently used as security, totalling 3,545 units, which could be valued and
charged subject to legal due diligence.
The 315 investment properties are held at current Market Value. The total value of the investment
properties including those under construction is £44m. Market values in a number of our areas have
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
seen some upward movement in values since the prior year, resulting in a surplus on revaluation of
£0.1m for the 2020/21 financial year.
In November 2016, the association purchased a new office for £4.5m to provide a central location for
the majority of the Group’s employees and deliver long-term financial efficiency savings for the Group
as it rationalised its existing office estate.
The cash balances and current asset investment balances have increased by £10.5m:
 The underlying business generated £16m of cash (2020: £18.7m) before debt servicing of £8.2m
(interest and capital repayments);
 Investing activities increased during the year to £26.7m (2020: £13.6m). This includes
expenditure of £32.1m (2020: £22.6m) in relation to the development of new homes in the year.
 There have been loan drawdowns of £29.4m in the year (2020: £50.0m)
The cash inflow in the year is £10.5m above the position at the end of the previous financial year.
This is, driven by the £29.4m of net new funding, offsetting other net expenditures. The cash flow
from operations (£16m) was offset by the expenditure on existing and new properties (£32.1m) and
the interest paid (£8.2m) in the year.
The increase in cash balances is contributing to the increased net current assets which are £37.6m as
at 31 March 2021 (2020: £24.9m net assets). The Group has access to significant secured loan finance
as discussed below. The revenue reserve now shows an accumulated gain of £33.9m (2020: £29.0m
gain), reflecting the surplus made during the financial year.
Group Performance
Group Operating Surplus as % of Turnover
(excluding fixed asset disposal surplus)

2021

2020

25.6%

23.7%

Rent losses (voids and bad debts as % of rent
and service charge receivable)

3.34%

1.61%

Current Rent arrears (gross arrears as % of
net rent and service charge receivable)

6.87%

5.9%

Rent collected % excluding current arrears

99.2%

100.03%

Average re-let time in days

54.5

31.3

Net debt to turnover

2.26

1.92

Covenants
Interest cover per loan agreements

2021
2.17

2020
2.28

11,361

9,647

Asset Cover
(Barclays / RBS)

175%

190%

Effective interest rate

4.55%

5.21%

Net Debt per unit (2019 Barclays/ RBS) £’s
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Financial covenants
The Group has three financial covenants, being:


Interest cover - calculated as the sum of: Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation (EBITDA), add surplus from property sales, less capitalised major repairs;
expressed as a ratio in comparison to net interest paid. In 2020/21, the tightest ratio was 2.17
(2020: 2.28) which provide significant headroom against the minimum ratio of 1.10.



Net debt per unit - has increased to £11.3K (2020: £9.6K) being significantly less than the £20k
per unit maximum. This movement recognises the increase in drawn debt (2020: £155.9m ,
2021: £185.1m) relating to our RBS (£20.0m) and L&G (£12.5m) facilities, slightly offset by
higher cash holdings (2020: £40.0m, 2021: £50.5m). The loans drawn have financed an increase
in new development activity during the year (Cost less Grant in 2020: £12.3m, 2021: £27.5m).



Asset cover – expressed as a percentage of the EUV-SH of the properties divided by the drawn
loan facilities, resulting in cover for 2021 of 175% across the combined facility (2020: 244%)
significantly exceeding the tightest covenant requirement of 110%.

Cash flow
The Group has had a net inflow of cash and cash equivalents during the year of approximately £10.5m
(2020: net inflow £28.8m). The cash balance as at 31 March 2021 was £50.5m (2020: £40.0m). Cash
inflows and outflows for the year under review are set out in the Group Statement of Cash Flows. Net
cash inflows from operating activities are principally from the management of housing stock.
The most significant net cash outflows are from investing activities; the spend on development and
acquisition of new properties £32.1m (2020: £22.6m), and major repairs capital expenditure to
existing properties of £4.8m (2020: £4.6m). Debt repayments of £3.4m were made in the year (2020:
£18.0m) and £8.2m of interest was paid (2020: £8.4m).
Treasury management


Treasury management is the responsibility of the Board. The strategy is set annually, approved
by the Board with quarterly review and monitoring reports.



Borrowings at the financial year-end were £185.1m (2020: £155.9m) from Barclays Bank Plc,
Royal Bank of Scotland Plc (RBS) and Legal and General Investment Management (LGIM); the
Group also has fully secured facilities of an additional £62.5m (2020: £70m) available to draw.



In October 2019, One Manchester agreed a new £75m facility with Legal & General Investment
Management (LGIM) as part of a wider refinancing package, advised by Savills Financial
Consultants and arranged with support from NatWest Markets. The private placement takes
the total funding available to £247.6m. As part of the deal, the arrangements with existing
lenders – RBS and Barclays – have been renewed at £76m and £96m respectively. The existing
term loan facilities have also been restructured with both banks.
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The Treasury Strategy aims to ensure that loans are not all due for repayment in any one year.
The Barclays debt of £71m and the RBS debt of £51m have agreed phased repayments until
2035. The effective interest rate in the year was 4.75% (2020: 5.21%).



The Group’s approved long term financial business plan confirms the existing secured facilities
and cash balances meets its development and planned investment for a period of three years.



The Group manages the risk of fluctuations in interest rate through a mixture of variable and
fixed rate debt. As at 31 March 2021 the Group had 2% of debt on a variable interest rate, 98%
was on a fixed rate (the Group’s Treasury Policy states that a minimum of 70% of debt should
be fixed). The fixed rate loans are on an embedded basis and the Group has no standalone
derivatives.



The Group borrows only in sterling so does not have any currency risk. Any cash surpluses are
invested in approved UK institutions in accordance with the approved Group Treasury
Management practices.

Accounting policies
The policies are set out in pages 50 to 63 of the financial statements. Accounting policies are
consistent across the Group.
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Value for money statement, priorities and future direction
This Value for Money (VfM) review for 2020/21 reports against the activity and achievements of One
Manchester in its sixth year, reflecting progress against our five priorities (reported on separately
above), progress within the business and against our VfM metrics, the overall One Manchester Social
Housing Cost Per Unit and ongoing and between years savings plans. This review is set against the
challenging background of the operating environment in 2020/21 which was dominated by Covidmanaging the business, supporting our customers and continuing to deliver services, new homes and
major asset investment to existing homes. The Board committed to investing in the equipment and
materials to ensure colleagues could work safely through Covid whilst also establishing a customer
hardship fund.
One Manchester believes that it fully complies with the requirements of the VfM Standard and a
separate compliance statement has been prepared, reviewed and adopted by our Board.
Our Value for Money Approach
•
•
•
•
•
•

To enhance the return on our assets, focus resources on our growth programme and existing
housing stock but also encompassing our offices and people.
To make best use of our resources by buying intelligently, reviewing our procurement and
contract management arrangements
To increase productivity, focussed on the best use of information systems and technology
Maximising income on both commercial and social rental elements
Improve the efficiency, quality and performance of our maintenance service
Achieve growth without a corresponding increase in our overheads

To support our five corporate priorities One Manchester Board adopted a new 4 year Value for Money
strategy in May 2021 covering the period 2021-2024. The strategy has 6 VfM objectives or themes.
The themes within the strategy are:
1. Best use of assets and resources,
2. Maximise our social value,
3. Maximise our procurement opportunities
4. Regulatory compliance and scrutiny
5. Deliver value for our customers, and
6. Deliver value for our stakeholders
Our approach to VfM during 2020/21 is considered in more detail below, and VfM is embedded within
the earlier five corporate priorities reviewed and also the wider commentary throughout the accounts.
Our VfM achievements will also be reflected in our social accounts and separate customer and
corporate reports issued later in the year.
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Delivering value for stakeholders
The VfM work in 2020/21 was set against the context of the Covid -19 pandemic and the practical
necessity to support our communities and maintain core services as much as possible - this period
included a number of national, and then more specific Greater Manchester lockdowns through a
significant part of 2020 and into 2021.
Through the challenges of 2020/21 key services were maintained and One Manchester actively
supported service users in a number of ways. Outbound calls offered welfare and food support and
our money advice services continued to support with debt advice. A £500k revenue customer hardship
fund was put in place and additional capital and revenue costs were borne by the business in ICT and
Health and Safety materials of £403k.
Income collection challenges and cost pressure delays were also a feature of the Covid-19 operating
environment. With the potential for impact on our operating margin and VfM savings plan a
considerable amount of work was undertaken in building and setting the, Board approved, budget for
2021/22, which recognised and accommodated both major repairs delays and an acknowledgement of
reactive repairs cost pressures.
One Manchester achieved a rebalance of operating margin from 25.2% (actual - 2020/21) to 28.9%
(budget- 2021/22). Further ongoing work following the Covid-19 lockdown has set an updated
efficiency target for 2021/22 of £750k and this will now focus on the implementation of our “Shaping
Our Future” programmes and a “deep dive” into reactive repairs, later in 2021.
Our £1.5m 3 year savings target (which began in 2020/21) is underway and will now be absorbed into
our longer and overall VfM “Shaping Our Future” programme with an overall VFM target of £5m; this
is described in more detail below.
One Manchester has maintained a rolling savings plan from merger in 2015 and revisited this to
update the March 2020/21 budget and business plan. The overall summary saving at the start of that
year was a cumulative £8.6m recurrent. The updated savings target as at 1 st April 2020 (detailed
below) confirmed that over the next three years the target would be £500k per annum with an overall
target of £1.5m at the end of year 3 (2022/23).
Amended Savings Plan
The detailed review of the 2020/21 Budget showed that costs were not sustainable if we were to (a)
achieve and maintain a desired operating margin of around 30%, (b) control our Overall Social Housing
Cost per Unit Measure and (c) begin to generate additional surpluses to start to meet the emerging
medium term challenges of a post Covid-19 economic downturn, possible further austerity, and
investment in Carbon reduction and energy efficiency in our existing and new stock.
The savings targets was therefore updated in the March 2020 Plan to include incremental savings of
£0.5m per annum for the next three years:
•
•
•

Year 1 £0.5m
Year 2 £1.0m
Year 3 onwards £1.5m
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With the ongoing impact of Covid-19 our 2020/21 budget (initially set in March 2020) was updated in
September 2020. A series of savings recommendations totalling £375k were presented as part of the
Budget and Business Plan update to Board in that September update. By the end of 2020/21, the
recognised savings identified through the year overachieved against this target, with a recognised total
of £469K.
Throughout this process, the Board has also been looking at a structure, approach and a programme
that could deliver both the balance of the 3 year saving plan, started in 2020/21, but also provide a
springboard to a more comprehensive overhaul of the business and operations. The Board’s objective
is also to ensure One Manchester remains cost effective, efficient and with good overall Social Housing
Cost Per Unit metrics and most importantly deliver effective and relevant, customer focussed,
services. Accordingly, Board approved the commencement of the Shaping our Future programme in
July 2020, to enable One Manchester to navigate the significant and competing demands faced by the
organisation and the wider housing sector, as we adapt to living with Covid.
The programme identified five major drivers for change at the onset, representing many of the macro
issues facing One Manchester along with increased pressures from balancing investment in existing
stock against new supply, building safety and achieving net zero carbon.
Following the initial, ‘Discovery’ phase, of the programme and the restructure of the Senior Leadership
Team, the Board was presented with an update in May of 2021. That presented the outcomes,
approach and business case for the ‘Design’ and ‘Delivery’ phases of the programme.
The business case was agreed by Board and through the programme the updated VfM plan is to
achieve an overall 20% efficiency target, by year 3 (2020/21 is yr1); through a combination of
improvements to People, Procurement and Process. The intention is that the programme will deliver
on-going savings of £4.925m per annum to the business plan.

Delivering value for our stakeholders and regulatory compliance and scrutiny.
In reviewing the corporate strategy, the VfM strategy, the business plan and budget, we have been
guided by the use of benchmarking, unit cost measures and analysis of our headline numbers in
making plans to achieve VfM. This work has included the following activity during the year:
•

Using Global Accounts and benchmarking to understand our costs for delivering services, the
quality this provides and how we compare with others.

•

Understanding our unit costs is a key VFM measure against the Standard and we have
adopted and included all the Standards VFM core measures in the Metrics table below.

•

Broadening VFM objective 2 as “Our Costs and Metrics” provides a simple way to adopt the
key measures of the VFM Standard as detailed below.

•

Recognising that our revenue costs, and our income will be the direct drivers in our operating
margin and impacts (positive and negative) in both will drive that. It also becomes a proxy of
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efficiency and how that maximizes our growth and reinvestment plans. We have a vigorous
decision making process in place to challenge what we spend, the how and why.
•

Gearing, ROCE and the EBITDA measures provide an indication of meeting our covenant
commitments, measuring financial returns against our wider charitable objectives and further
debt capacity.

•

By utilising the ‘headline social housing cost per unit’ (CPU), we can see how we fare with
others in the sector. Using this methodology, One Manchester, at £2,582 for 2016/17, ranked
in the top quartile. For 2017/18 & 2018/19 the values of £3,075 &£3,077 were impacted by
the increased costs of major repairs with the towers programme and in 2019/20 at £3,195
reflected increased investment in areas such as health and safety and growth and responsive
repairs. Our out turn for 2020/21 of £3,206 is broadly similar to 2019/20 although it is
impacted by both Covid additional costs and slowdowns in major and reactive repairs. Our
current and future direction analysis below is particularly important to us in maintaining and
managing our future financial strength.

•

Clearly as Major repairs investment climbs over the next few years that ranking is more
challenging. In addition our focus remains on managing our management costs more at the
mid sector average and that is a key priority over the next 3 to 4 years and Shaping our Future
is a key vehicle to deliver those efficiencies.

•

Unit growth, part of the metrics table, is a separate strand under our third VFM objective Our assets, place and growth.

The table below details historic actual to 2019/20 ; accounts for 2020/21 and budgeted and Business
Plan predicted overall HSHCPU and breakdown through to 2023/24.

Table 1: unit cost measures – actual and target

Actual
Total social housing CPU
Management CPU
Service charge CPU
Maintenance CPU
Major Repairs CPU
Other social housing CPU
Stock numbers

Business Plan

2017/18
£3,075
£1,174
£184
£645
£875
£196

2018/19
£3,077
£1,137
£204
£714
£873
£149

2019/20
£3,195
£1,234
£251
£825
£687
£198

2020/21
£3,206
£1,296
£275
£789
£724
£122

2021/22
£3,507
£1,234
£244
£701
£1,212
£115

2022/23
£3,110
£1,200
£246
£665
£886
£113

2023/24
£3,286
£1,237
£247
£680
£1,009
£113

11,878

11,794

11,944

11,878

12,108

12,278

12,443
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Since 2015/16 (except for 2016/17), our HSHCPU has remained at £3,100 - £3,200.
The increase from 2019/20 to 2020/21 is marginal and largely due to changes in expenditure in
management costs – our specific additional revenue covid costs and hardship fund investment of
£683k account for £57 of that average difference of £62 per unit.
Whilst maintenance costs start to fall from 2021/22, we see a corresponding planned increase in
major repairs spend in the medium term, reflecting our investment programme works.
The major repairs increase of circa £488 between 2020/21 and 2021/22 per unit increases the
predicted overall headline cost significantly in 2021/22 and reflects both delayed expenditure from
2020/21 and upfront investment in our Grey Mare Lane regeneration project. This general increased
investment then climbs steadily in later years as major reinvestment ramps up.
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Table 2: sector comparison – actual and target overall cost per unit £’000 2020/21
One Manchester £'000/Unit - Actual 2018/19 - 2020/21 Costs and Projected Costs 2021/22 to 2022/23
2018/19
Actual
CPU

Quartile
Position

2019/20
Actual
CPU

Quartile
Position

2020/21
DRAFT
ACTUAL
CPU

2021/22

2022/23

Estimated
Estimated
Estimated
ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED
Quartile
Quartile
Quartile
CPU
CPU
Position
Position
Position

Management

1.14

1.23

1.30

1.23

1.20

Service Costs

0.20

0.25

0.28

0.24

0.25

Maintenance

0.71

0.82

0.79

0.70

0.67

Major Repairs
(incl. Capitalised)

0.87

0.69

0.72

1.21

0.89

Other Costs

0.15

0.20

0.12

0.12

0.11

Headline Social
Housing Cost

3.08

3.20

3.21

3.51

3.11
2019/20

Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) All RP Sector Data - 2019/20
Management

Service Costs

Maintenance

Major Repairs

Other Costs

Headline Social
Housing Cost

Upper

1.33

0.81

1.32

1.10

0.42

4.86

Median

1.06

0.44

1.11

0.85

0.22

3.84

Lower

0.86

0.25

0.91

0.62

0.10

3.34

Please note:
The estimated quartile positions are based on the all RP RSH sector data for 2019/20 (see second table) and are an indication as to where the organisation would sit without using mid-upper and mid-lower markers.

In sector comparative terms, our overall cost per unit remains top quartile (lower cost) throughout this
period, except for 2021/22. This gives an indication of the ongoing overall efficiency of the business.
Management costs are predicted to be at the upper end of median quartile over the next four years.
They remain a key focus as we move forward to set the 2022/23 budget and the movement down
whilst positive, will be subject to detailed review.
The only other measure hitting upper quartile being major repairs. This reflects a significant
commitment by the business to consistently invest in our stock, including the cladding replacement,
which can be viewed positively.
The significant increase in major repairs per unit in 2021/22 of £488 per unit has clearly
affected our overall target figure, moving from lower quartile to the lower/median boundary.
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Value for Money Metrics
The table below details historic actual, accounts for 2020/21 and budgeted and Business Plan targets
through to 2024/25.

Table 3: value for money metrics – actual and target (as at March 2021)

Actual
VfM Metrics

Projected

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

8.18%

14.82%

13.18%

13.62%

19.85%

12.63%

10.49%

11.42%

% New Supply Delivered (Social Housing Units)

0.15%

0.27%

2.13%

0.08%

2.14%

1.91%

1.93%

0.72%

No. New Supply Delivered (Social Housing Units)
Closed Social Housing Units

18
11,878

32
11,794

254
11,944

9
11,878

259
12,108

234
12,278

240
12,443

89
12,443

% New Supply Delivered (Non-Social Housing Units)

0.38%

1.51%

0.16%

0.10%

0.10%

0.47%

0.22%

0.22%

No. New Supply Delivered (Non-Social Housing Units)
Closed Housing Units (Social & Non-Social) plus Leasehold

48
12,538

192
12,698

21
12,892

13
12,853

13
13,090

63
13,323

30
13,518

30
13,548

3 Gearing (Net Book Value of Housing Properties)

64.40%

58.00%

54.30%

57.30%

63.00%

65.00%

62.00%

63.00%

4 EBITDA MRI Interest Cover

170.40%

163.35%

159.60%

158.80%

134.00%

213.00%

235.00%

235.00%

5 Headline Social Housing Cost per Unit

£3,075

£3,077

£3,195

£3,206

£3,507

£3,110

£3,286

£3,373

6a Operating Margin (Social Housing Lettings only)

26.35%

33.13%

26.12%

25.66%

30.18%

33.15%

33.04%

33.14%

6b Operating Margin (Overall)

23.41%

29.45%

23.70%

25.22%

28.96%

32.99%

33.50%

34.16%

7 Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

7.98%

10.06%

6.58%

6.19%

6.58%

6.85%

6.74%

6.19%

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

196.60%

168.43%

172.50%

141.90%

110.70%

181.30%

190.60%

191.60%

2.1

2.27

2.8

3.3

3.2

3.5

3.5

3.7

1 Reinvestment

2a

2b

Other Metrics
1 EBITDA MRI Social Housing Lettings Interest Cover
2 Net Debt to Social Housing Lettings Turnover

Trend:

Note: The detailed calculation of the metrics follow specific definitions to ensure consistency across the sector . The referenced
values below follow those definitions.

The table combines the key measures at the heart of the VfM Standard. The key elements to draw out
are:


New Supply: the evolution and growth in new homes delivered from merger is aligned to our
growth strategy. The programme started to accelerate in 2017/18 and the business is now
formulating its growth aspirations for 2022/23 and beyond and is clearly demonstrated in our
reinvestment and new supply delivery metrics.

• In real terms, our growth programme has been expanded from 500 new homes at merger to an
overall programme with homes planned of 2,373 by 2027/28. To date this includes 677
additional and new homes delivered from merger as at March 2021.
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• For 2020/21, Covid- 19 delayed the delivery of new units and slowed down starts on site by
approximately 6 months. 22 new units were built or purchased and the notable drop reflects
that COVID 19 slow down, before recovering strongly in 2021/22, the future new social and
affordable new homes in the table demonstrates an ongoing commitment to affordable supply.
• The total growth in our social housing stock is impacted by continued disposals; a number of
tenants retain the Right-to-Buy or Right-to-Acquire as a vehicle to home ownership. One
Manchester saw 63 properties sold in the year.
• Reinvestment: strong and similar performance over the last three years as our new homes
programme continued with continued investment in existing stock. Actual investment spend in
new homes and existing stock was comparable at £31.5m (good performance given Covid
restrictions) in 2020/21, £27.4m 2019/20 and £28.2m 2018/19. The new homes element also
climbed positively over the three years from £20.9m in 2018/19 to £22.8m in 2019/20 and
£26.6m in 2020/21.
• Gearing: our debt profile shows the combined effect of future debt used to deliver homes
through to 2020/21. The actual increase between the last two years is set against both a
growth in our property asset base between years, an overall increase of £19.1m in net debt
drawing a £20m fix with RBS and £12.5m tranche 2 of L&G funding offset by repaying the
flexible RCFs. Practically, One Manchester retains significant cash/equivalent balances of
£50.5m against actual debt of £185.1m. This is considered as mainly a timing issue before the
facilities are utilised in delivering new homes from 2021/22 onwards. Accordingly, as cash is
used up, gearing then climbs from 2021/22.
• Unit Costs: these are explored in some detail above.
• EBITDA MRI measured here is similar to the measure used by our lenders within our covenant
assessments. However, there is one main difference where our lenders covenants include
surplus on sales of housing properties within the calculation, and the VfM metric does not. This
explains the difference on EBITDA for the VfM measure (for 2020/21) of 158.8 vs the lender
covenant measures of 2.17 interest cover.
• The general trend in our ability to meet our financial covenants with our funders was impacted
by the tower’s expenditure in 2017/18 and 2018/19 (although we remained fully compliant). As
noted in the Organisational Capacity section of the statement, the 2020/21 operating surplus
and operating margin saw an increase from 23.7% in 2019/20 to 25.7% in 2020/21, and a
further planned improvement to approx. 29% for 2021/22. As EBITDA-MRI is a relationship of
operating surplus, the improvement is mirrored in this measure (see also below) and remains
at higher levels in later years; as the business continues to invest in its new homes’ growth
programme, with associated increased costs and impacted by major repairs investments in
2020/21.
• Operating Margin: our planned operating margin performance has been impacted this year
with covid costs and a slow down in major repairs, repairs and developments although against
that the margin improved from to 23.7% in 2019/20 to 25.7% this year. Using the global tables
our margin is reasonable against the whole sector median for 2019/20 of 23.1%. and a good
performance against North West LSVTs at 18.4% and our planned budget position for 2021/22
is good at 29%.
• ROCE: at 6.19 for 2020/21 against 6.58% for 2019/20 is reasonably aligned. The operating
surplus has improved between years from £18.5m to £19.98m in 29020/21 but against a much
stronger balance sheet asset base with total fixed assets increased from £257m to £285m- and
increase of £28m and current assets from £47m to £60m an increase of £13m. Our future ROCE
remains around the 6% level.
30

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2021

•

EBITDA MRI Social Housing follows the pattern of the base EBITDA measure and as noted does
tighten in later years (2021/22 is increased major repairs capital and revenue repairs spend) as
the business continues to invest in its new homes’ growth programme with associated
increased interest costs climbing.

The following table sets out how our 2020/21 performance compares to relevant peer groups (NB:
LSVT 7-12 Years North West was not selected, as there are only seven organisations in that group).

OM
2020

OM
2021

Reinvestment

13.18
%

13.62%

New supply –
social

2.13
%

New supply –
non-social

VfM Metric

OM Trend

Table 4: value for money metrics 2019/2020 – global accounts sector comparison

All RP’s
(210 total)

LSVT North West
(25 total)

LSVT 7-12 Years
(9 total)

Median
2020

Variance

Median
2020

Variance

Median
2020

Variance



7.22%

5.97%

9.01%

4.17%

13.18%

0,00%

0.08%



1.47%

0.66%

0.79%

1.34%

0.78%

1.35%

0.16
%

0.10%



0.00%

0.16%

0.00%

0.16%

0.00%

1.16%

Gearing

54.3
%

57.3%



44.0%

10.4%

35.5%

18.8%

28.1%

26.2%

EBITDA MRI

159.6
%

158.8%



170.3%

-10.7%

189.4%

-29.8%

159.6%

0.00%

26.1
%

25.7%



25.7%

0.4%

22.2%

3.9%

20.3%

5.8%

23.7
%

25.2%



23.1%

0.6%

18.4%

5.3%

21.1%

2.6%

6.6%

6.2%



3.4%

3.2%

4.3%

2.3%

4.4%

2.2%

Operating
margin – social
housing
Operating
margin –
overall
ROCE

The reinvestment metric looks at the investment in properties (existing stock as well as new supply) as
a percentage of the value of total properties held. It demonstrates that finances are being put to good
use by maintaining and improving stock as well as adding to the asset base. Nationally, at the median,
RPs are spending the equivalent of 7.22% of their assets’ value on reinvestment. Stock transfer
organisations have higher median reinvestment rates
At 13.62% we are markedly above the LSVT NW median, at 9.01% (global accounts 2019/20). This new
and existing homes investment indicates that we are fulfilling our promises to tenants by investing
funds to improve stock and develop new homes.
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New supply: at the median, RPs are developing new social housing, in the region of just over 1.47% of
their stock in a year. Our combined result of 0.18% is poor against our growth aspirations and an
outlier with the programme delivering only a handful of units this year - 22. Schemes were delayed
and handovers accelerated just before last year end (March 2020) just as covid lockdowns began and
those units correctly counted in 2019/20. The programme does quickly settle back to the 2%+ metric
from 2021/22.
Gearing measures, the ratio of debt to assets, use a concept similar to mortgage lenders’ loan to value
measure. While a gearing ratio above the median may demonstrate willingness to leverage assets to
fund development, this measure has no real polarity. Gearing can also be affected by funders’ lending
covenants, which may set conditions in relation to borrowing levels.
The results show the majority of RP’s appear to use borrowing prudently with ratios below 45%.
Associations with development programmes tend to have higher gearing than those without – our
result of 57.3%, higher than the median results, demonstrates that and reflects the reinvestment
metric, but only in part.
It should be noted that the majority of historic debt was generated to support decent homes ‘catchup’ repairs, and as we move forward, our debt profile increases to support the development
programme. In addition, the bulk of our stock is historic social stock from both originating associations
and came across at transfer at nil value and the current carrying value of this stock purely reflects the
investment programme works undertaken on them through Decent Homes. The value of assets is
therefore more a reflection of Existing Use Value – Social Housing valuations. Open market values
utilised for Right to Buy calculations (and before significant tenant discounts) demonstrate that
properties in the open market are of a scalar 3 or 4 times at least their current book values. These
values applied in the calculation would demonstrate a much-reduced gearing calculation.
EBITDA MRI measures financial performance before factoring in financing decisions, accounting
decisions or tax environments. It is an approximation of cash generated; presenting it as a percentage
of interest shows the level of headroom on meeting interest payments for outstanding debt. This
metric is meaningful for RP’s who borrow to invest and cover interest payments with their operating
surplus. Whilst it is important for earnings to cover interest payments, a high interest cover ratio could
mean there is additional capacity for investment. As a result, this measure also has neutral polarity. At
the median points, RPs earnings are more than 1.7 their interest payments. Our between year values
at approx. 1.59 does show a consistency. The pattern for later years (in particular 2021/22) is more
influenced by increasing major repairs costs and wider interest costs supporting both the new homes
programme and an increasing spend in major repairs, towards the latter years of the table. This
mirrors the cost per unit impact of increasing major repairs in the latter years from 2021/22.
The overall operating margin measures the amount of surplus generated from turnover on a RP’s dayto-day activities and is a key measure of operational efficiency as it is influenced by both income and
expenditure. Various factors can affect an operating margin including rent charges (lower rents mean
lower margins). Margins of 20%+ indicate financial stability and whilst clearly impacted in 2019/20 by
budget pressures, and covid in 2020/21, but generally good performance against the sector norms.
The 2021/22 budget and business plan show a strong return to margins around 29% is at the upper
performance of LSVT’s.
ROCE – Return on Capital Employed – shows how well a RP is using both its capital and debt to
generate a capital return. It is a commonly used ratio to assess the efficient investment in capital
resources. The metric supports RP’s with a wide range of capital investment programmes. However, it
can be influenced by the nature of a RP’s property portfolio e.g. balance between market and social
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rent, age of stock, historic debt and basis of valuation. Generally, higher returns are seen as better and
the national median point was 3.4%. Our result of 6.2% represents a positive measure against the
sector median although tempered by the relatively low carrying value of the social housing asset base.
VfM theme – Best Use of Assets and resources
Decisions of the Board were made during the period to support the management in delivering services
and ensuring that the focus on Assets and resources were sustained with the following focus areas:
•

•

•
•
•
•

•
•

Maintaining the condition of our existing properties, investing in place and building new
homes, which is critical to safeguarding financial strength through the strategy to develop
over 1,000 new homes
Asset Performance Evaluation (APE) modelling - to measure the long term sustainability of,
and to enable the identification of cost appropriate options to improve both the financial
performance and social return on investment of our stock
Use a Net Present Value (NPV) calculation as an indicator of the financial return on
investment in our existing properties
Stock condition surveys (91% external survey completed) to support and inform the delivery
of our Asset Management Strategy which was updated and presented at the May 2021 Board.
Place leadership is a core component of One Manchester’s vision. We seek out opportunities
to extend our service offer and build upon our strong links with our communities
In constructing our growth plans, we develop a range of housing products that fit with the
place and meet the demands of a thriving City and support the residential growth strategy of
Manchester and the region
Moving forward with our master planning opportunities, notably Grey Mare Lane
Maximising income on both commercial and social rental element
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Asset Management strategy
Following our previous Stock Condition survey in 2017/18, which completed 56% sample, it has been
agreed to undertake a further sample that will equate to a total 100% sample – 91% as at July 2021.
The updated results will be incorporated within the Group’s Business Plan to form the basis of our
annual asset investment programme budget as well as our 5-year plan and 40 year projections.
The Group’s Asset Performance Evaluation model (APE) is updated annually. In addition to this, we use
the CROHM model to evaluate the energy performance to individual properties.
This informs our investment decisions based on financial viability (on a net present value basis),
sustainability (measured using key community performance indicators) and the level of energy
performance, enabling us to target underperforming areas in our asset management and Place area
plans.
We have carried out a range of energy improvements with the aim of reducing customers’ fuel bills
and thus contributing to alleviating fuel poverty in the communities where we operate.
The range of measures includes traditional improvements – energy efficient boilers, loft, cavity and
external wall insulation but also includes renewable measures such as ground and air source heating
and solar PV solutions. We continue to explore opportunities to pilot innovative solutions that will
have long-term benefits for our customers, our communities and contribute to local and national
targets for achieving net carbon zero (NZC) , and our work in Grey Mare Lane in 2021 and 2022 will
provide a real pathfinder in whole house NZC options and solutions as part of the regeneration of that
estate.
Using the latest version of the APE model, we can now identify our poorest performing assets at a
granular level. The current version of APE highlights just 55 units (0.46% of our managed stock), spread
over six Place areas that have a poor NPV, and we keep these homes under annual review in terms of
their long-term future. We are in the process of further analysing these results via a new piece of
software, SHAPE, which now includes revised ‘Social Indicators’, that can be used throughout the
business and which include data from the Indices of Multiple Deprivation, Internal data and data from
our CROHM model.
In an earlier version of APE, it identified four asset groups resulting in further analysis and option
appraisal. Two of those places included (Beswick and St Georges) and we have undertaken a master
planning feasibility. All four areas have been considered on a long- term investment basis, on a tenyear timeframe, and we will return to each one.
However, we are currently focussing on the Beswick area, which forms part of a wider regeneration in
the east of the city. Eastlands Regeneration Framework is an initiative led by Manchester Life (the City
Football Group and Manchester City Council in partnership) which includes within its boundary an
estate owned by One Manchester known as Grey Mare Lane. We are working jointly with Manchester
Life on detailed planning and design feasibility with a view of taking firm proposals to Board later in
the year. The estate regeneration is planned to provide new homes as well as re-provision and a
commercial and retail offer over an eight-year period. The master planning proposals fall within our
Growth Strategy that is further described below.
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Our programme to replace cladding to sixteen tower blocks commenced has been completed. The
programme has been funded from internal resources with £6.9m support from the Government.
Those projects have recently been given a complete government audit sign off with the highest grade
achieved.
A programme to replace the heating systems at the three high-rise blocks (Royce Court, Duffield Court
and Hornchurch Court) has also been completed. A further programme to replace heating systems a
Platt Court, Worsley Court and Bickerdike Court started on site in January 2020.
We are also involved in a bid for funding to provide replacement heating systems to Mill Court and
Fulton Court. If this bid is successful, the existing systems will be replaced with Renewable GSHP
solution.
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Governance
The Board of One Manchester Limited is the Parent Board for the One Manchester Group and
comprises 12 members as follows:
 7 Independent Board members who are neither employees, Residents or Local Authority
Persons
 2 Resident Board Members
 1 nominated member from Manchester City Council
 2 co-optees appointed in accordance with Rule D11 of the Association’s constitution
The Company Secretary and Executive Leadership Team attend all meetings of the Board.
Executive Officers do not currently serve on the Boards of the One Manchester Group – but work with
them to ensure the delivery of the corporate vision and priorities.
Three other subsidiary companies complete the One Manchester Group namely: One Manchester
Treasury Limited, One Manchester Developments Limited and One Manchester Property Limited (all
being subsidiaries of One Manchester Limited). They all have their own separate Boards but their
activities are monitored by the Parent Board.
Board members are remunerated within the National Housing Federation recommended scale.
On 26th May 2021, the Chair of the Board, Stephen Mole, stood down and the Board welcomed his
successor, Yashur Turgut, who will stand for election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
2021.
One Manchester Limited has adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance (2020)
(‘the Code’) for itself and its subsidiaries.
The 4 main principles of the Code are:


Mission and values: The board sets and actively drives the organisation’s social purpose,
mission, values and ambitions, and through these embeds within the organisation resident
focus, inclusion, integrity, openness and accountability.



Strategy and delivery: The board sets the organisation’s plans and strategies and exercises
demonstrable and effective oversight of their delivery.



Board effectiveness: The organisation is led by a skilled and diverse board which regularly
reviews and capably manages its own performance and effectiveness, and ensures that it
complies with this code.



Control and assurance: The board actively manages the risks faced by the organisation, and
obtains robust assurance that controls are effective, and that plans and compliance obligations
are being delivered.

One Manchester Limited and its subsidiaries comply in full with the National Housing Federation Code
of Governance (2020) with the exception of 2 instances in 2021: The Code stipulates that:’ when there
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is a material conflict of interest, any individual concerned withdraws from discussions and decisions on
relevant matters’. During the Board meetings of 21st July 2021 and 11th May 2021 – the Board used its
powers under Rule D23 to request that the interested individuals remain present during discussion of
a relevant matter. These individuals did not have a vote on the matter and did not count towards the
quorum.
By order of the Board

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary
15 September 2021
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The board members are responsible for preparing the report of the Board and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Co-operative and Community Benefit Society law and social housing legislation require board
members to prepare financial statements for each financial year for the group and association in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). The directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the association and of the
surplus or deficit of the group and association for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the board members are required to:
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice
for social housing providers (issued September 2018) have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the association will continue in business.
The board members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the association’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the association and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Co-operative and Communities Society Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community benefit
Societies (Group Accounts) Regulation 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the
Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the association and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the report of the Board is prepared in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice for social housing providers (issued September 2018).
Financial statements are published on the Group’s website in accordance with legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and determination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Group’s website is the
responsibility of board members. The board members’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing
integrity of the financial statements contained therein.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion, the financial statements:
•
•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Association’s affairs as at 31
March 2021 and of the Group’s and the Association’s surplus for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts)
Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the board members’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and of
the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the board with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
Other information
The board are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information including the
Strategic Report, Report of the Board of Management, Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities for
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Other information (continued)
the Report and Financial Statements and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where we are required by the Cooperative or Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 to
report to you if, in our opinion:
•
•
•
•
•

the information given in the Report of the Board for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is not consistent with the financial statements;
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Association; or
a satisfactory system of control has not been maintained over transactions; or
the parent Association financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board
As explained more fully in the board members responsibilities statement set out on page XX, the board
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board members determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the board are responsible for assessing the Group and the
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board either intend to liquidate
the Group or the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)
Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in
respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:
Based on our understanding of the Group and the sector in which it operates, we identified that the
principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to their registration with the
Regulator of Social Housing, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the Group Financial Statements or their continued operation. We also considered
those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as compliance
with the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019 and tax
legislation.
We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate financial results and management bias
in accounting estimates.
The audit procedures to address the risks identified included:
• agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
• challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates in
particular in relation to the net realisable value of properties developed for sale, fair value of
investment properties, the useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets, recoverability of
balances outstanding as at year end and the defined benefit pension liability;
• discussions with, and inquiries of, management and those charged with governance, including
consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations
and fraud;
• enquires to confirm with management that there was no legal correspondence during the
period, or post year end, requiring review;
• obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring compliance with laws
and regulations;
• identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted from staff
members with privilege access rights, journals posted by key management, journals posted,
and journals posted after the year end; and
• reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit
reports and reviewing correspondence with HMRC and the Regulator of Social Housing.
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment
by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the
audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is
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from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to
become aware of it.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of the Association, as a body, in accordance with in
accordance with the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Association’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Association and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
3 Hardman Street
Manchester
United Kingdom
Date 22 September 2021
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number
OC305127).

.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Note

2021
£ ‘000

2020
£ ‘000

Turnover: continuing activities

3

59,624

60,268

Operating costs

3

(44,589)

(45,983)

Surplus on the disposal of housing properties

6

4,940

4,266

Operating surplus: continuing activities

3,5

19,975

18,551

Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and similar charges
Movement in fair value of investment properties

7
8
15

240
(8,468)
92

226
(7,949)
1,845

11,839

12,673

-

-

11,839

12,673

(6,960)

7,276

4,879

19,949

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

12

Surplus for the financial year
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (loss) / gain relating to pension scheme

11

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 50 to 100 form part of these financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Note

2021
£’000

2020
£ ‘000

Turnover: continuing activities

3

59,624

60,268

Operating costs

3

(44,539)

(45,945)

Surplus on the disposal of housing properties

6

4,940

4,266

Operating surplus: continuing activities

3,5

20,025

18,589

Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and similar charges
Gift aid from subsidiary undertakings
Movement in fair value of investment properties

7
8
9
15

240
(8,574)
237
92

229
(8,161)
184
1,845

12,020

12,686

-

-

12,020

12,686

(6,960)

7,276

5,060

19,961

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

12

Surplus for the financial period and Total
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain / (loss) relating to pension scheme

11

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 50 to 100 form part of these financial statements.

.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2021

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Fixed Asset Investments
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Note

2021
£ ’000

2020
£ ‘000

13
14
15
19

231,006
9,794
43,988
297

208,366
9,695
39,019
50

285,085

257,130

3,939
5,609
50,493

1,421
5,431
40,038

60,041

46,890

(22,393)

(21,972)

37,648

24,918

322,733

282,048

17
18

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

21

(284,589)

(256,280)

Pension (liability) / asset

11

(3,978)

3,259

Net asset

34,166

29,027

Capital and reserves
Income and expenditure reserve
Restricted Reserves

33,906
260

29,027
-

Total reserves

34,166

29,027

The notes on pages 50 to 100 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 15
September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yashar Turgut
Chair

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary

Tom Fenton
Chair of Audit & Risk Committee
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2021
Note

2021
£ ’000

2020
£ ‘000

13
14
15

231,345
9,794
43,988

208,578
9,695
39,280

285,127

257,553

3,956
5,550
49,592

1,421
4,193
39,025

59,098

44,639

(21,632)

(19,958)

37,466

24,681

322,593

282,234

(284,589)
297
(3,978)

(256,280)
50
3,259

Net asset

34,323

29,263

Capital and reserves
Income and expenditure reserve

34,323

29,263

Total reserves

34,323

29,263

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

17
18

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Intercompany Loan
Pension asset / (liability)

21
11

The notes on pages 50 to 100 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 15
September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yashar Turgut
Chair

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary

Tom Fenton
Chair of Audit & Risk Committee
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
2021

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2020

29,027

Surplus for the year

11,839

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes

(6,960)

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 March 2021
Restricted reserve arising on revaluation

Total reserves at 31 March 2021

2020

Balance at 1 April 2019
Surplus for the year

4,879
33,906
260

34,166

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000
9,078
12,673
21,751

Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes

7,276

Other comprehensive income for the year

7,276

Balance at 31 March 2020

29,027

The notes on pages 50 to 100 form part of these financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
2021

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2020

29,263

Surplus for the year

12,020

Actuarial loss on defined pension schemes

(6,960)

Other comprehensive income for the year

5,060

Balance at 31 March 2021

2020

Balance at 1 April 2019
Surplus for the year
Reserves recognised on Group Simplification

34,323

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000
468
12,686
8,833
21,987

Actuarial gain on defined pension schemes

7,276

Other comprehensive income for the year

7,276

Balance at 31 March 2020

29,263

The notes on pages 50 to 100 form part of these financial statements.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus for the year

2021
£ ‘000
11,839

2020
£ ‘000
12,673

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Fixed Assets – Housing properties
Depreciation of Fixed Assets – Other
Grant amortisation
Impairment
Difference between pension contributions and costs
Surplus on disposal of fixed assets
Increase in stock
Increase / (Decrease) in debtors
(Decrease) / Increase in creditors
Interest received
Interest payable
Movement on fair value of investment property

6,807
1,002
(3,904)
216
537
(4,940)
(2,518)
(178)
(2,652)
(240)
8,296
(92)

6,477
1,205
(3,831)
281
(4,266)
592
(1,032)
766
(107)
7,830
(1,845)

Cash from operations

14,173

18,743

Corporation Tax paid

-

-

14,173

18,743

Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sales of fixed asset properties
Investment in Joint Venture
Improvement Programme
Purchase of Investment Property
Construction of Housing Properties
Purchase of other fixed assets
Social Housing Grants received
Interest received

5,269
(247)
(4,894)
(5,209)
(24,571)
(1,334)
4,653
240

4,057
(4,615)
(22,620)
(867)
10,348
107

Net cash used in investing activities

(26,093)

(13,590)

Cash from financing activities
Interest paid
Loans repaid
Loans received

(6,932)
(3,393)
32,700

(8,423)
(17,956)
50,000

Net cash inflow from financing activities

22,375

23,621

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

10,455

28,774

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

40,038

11,264

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

50,493

40,038

Net cash generated from operating activities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Legal status

One Manchester Limited was registered as a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society
on 6th October 2014 and is registered with the Regulator of Social Housing as a Registered
Provider.
2.

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with applicable law and UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP).
For One Manchester, this includes the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014 (and related group accounts regulations), the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, FRS
102 “the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of
Ireland”, the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for Registered Social Housing
Providers 2018, “Accounting by registered social housing providers” and the Accounting
Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires Group management to exercise
judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.
Going concern
The group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its
future development are set out within the report of the board and strategic report. The
group also has a long-term business plan, which shows that it is able to service these debt
facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants. The board has carried out
additional stress testing to the business plan as a result of Covid 19 to ensure financial
resilience. Although the Government has started ease the lockdown, the impacts of COVID
are still ongoing and uncertain and outside of our control. We continue to manage cash
flows and review financial stability as matters progress.
On this basis, the board has a reasonable expectation that the group and association has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a
period of at least twelve months after the date on which the report and financial statements
are signed. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Parent company disclosure exemptions
In preparing the separate financial statements of the parent company, advantage has been
taken of the following disclosure exemptions available in FRS 102:
 Only one reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and
end of the period has been presented as the reconciliations for the group and the
parent company would be identical;
 No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company;
 Disclosures in respect of the parent company’s financial instruments have not been
presented as equivalent disclosures have been provided in respect of the group as a
whole;
 No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key
management personnel of the parent company as their remuneration is included in
the totals for the group as a whole.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements present the results of One Manchester and its
subsidiaries ("the Group") as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and
balances between group companies are therefore eliminated in full.
The accounts of the following companies are included in the consolidation:





One Manchester Limited
One Manchester Developments Limited
One Manchester Treasury Limited
One Manchester Property Limited

One Manchester Limited has the right to appoint members to the Board of the subsidiaries
and thereby exercises control over them. One Manchester Limited is the ultimate parent
undertaking.
One Manchester Developments Limited is a property development business that provides
build project management services to the Group. As part of the group simplification exercise
carried out in early 2019, the Board has also approved a change in name of City South
Manchester Developments Limited to One Manchester Developments, actioned by
Companies House on 13th June 2019.
One Manchester Treasury Limited is an investment company providing treasury services to
the trading entities of the Group.
One Manchester Property Limited (company number 11384233) was incorporated on 26
May 2018 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited with
general commercial objects. It was established in order to enable potential non-charitable,
non-core activity to be undertaken, which is likely to include property development for sale,
joint venture arrangements and providing property management services to third parties.
51

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Income
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The group
generates the following material income streams:
 Rental income receivable (after deducting lost rent from void properties available for
letting),
 Service charges receivable,
 Revenue grants,
 Amortisation of Social Housing Grant and Gap funding grant,
 Proceeds from the sale of land and property, including the first tranche sale of
shared ownership properties.
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach
practical completion and are formally let. Revenue Grants are receivable when the
conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been met. Charges for support services
funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under the contractual
arrangements with Administering Authorities. Income from first tranche sales of shared
ownership property and sales of properties built for sale is recognised at the point of legal
completion of the sale.
Service charges
The Group adopts the variable method for calculating and charging service charges to its
tenants and leaseholders. Expenditure is recorded when a service is provided and charged
to the relevant service charge account or to a sinking fund. Income is recorded based on the
estimated amounts chargeable.
Schemes managed by agents
Income is shown as rent receivable and management fees payable to agents are included in
operating costs.
Should the Group carry the financial risk on property managed by agents, all the income and
expenditure arising from the property during the year will be included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Should an agency carry the financial risk, then the Statement of
Comprehensive Income will include only that income and expenditure that relates solely to
the Group.
Pension costs
Contributions to the Group's defined contribution pension scheme are charged to the
Income Statement in the year in which they become payable.
The Group participates in two funded defined benefit schemes, the Social Housing Pension
Scheme (SHPS), and the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF – 4 separate schemes).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Pension costs (continued)
GMPF
The difference between the fair value of the assets held in the group's defined benefit
pension scheme and the scheme's liabilities measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method are recognised in the group's statement of financial position as a
pension asset or liability as appropriate. The carrying value of any resulting pension scheme
asset is restricted to the extent that the group is able to recover the surplus either through
reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme.
SHPS
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has not been possible for the
company to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the Scheme as a
defined benefit scheme, therefore the company has accounted for the Scheme as a defined
contribution scheme.
For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it has been possible to obtain
sufficient information to enable the company to account for the scheme as a defined benefit
scheme, similar to the GMPF.
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. The company is therefore
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are
unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme.
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme.
Other Pensions Issues
There are two issues which affect the One Manchester pension schemes - guaranteed
minimum pension equalisation (GMP) and the McCloud judgement.
Guaranteed Minimum Pension Equalisation
Employers and employees who contracted out of the additional state pension, paid lower NI
contributions. However, for those with pensionable service between 17 May 1990 and 6
April 1997, the pension scheme was required to provide a GMP which was at least equal to
the additional state pension foregone.
GMPs are taken at different ages – women at 60 and men at 65. This results in inequality in
the GMP value at the point at which benefits are taken. Any scheme that operated a
formerly contracted out DB scheme must equalise benefits for men and women.
McCloud Judgement
A series of changes by the government meant public sector workers were moved to new
pension schemes in 2015. They were typically offered less generous terms than the one they
were to move out of. As part of the changes, transitional arrangements were put in place
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Pension costs (continued)
where older workers could stay in the more generous schemes, while younger workers had
to transfer to the new schemes. The court of appeal ruled that these arrangements offered
to some workers amounted to unlawful discrimination. The government published its
decision in February 2021 to allow those scheme members affected by these arrangements
a “deferred choice underpin”, allowing those affected members, retiring before October
2023, to choose which benefits to receive.
Holiday pay accrual
A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which has
accrued at the Statement of Financial Position date and carried forward to future periods.
This is measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement so
accrued at the Statement of Financial Position date.
Taxation
The charge for taxation for the year is based on the surpluses arising from non-charitable
activities which are liable to tax.
Deferred taxation is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the
Statement of Financial Position date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future
date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise, based on current tax rates and law.
Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation
computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more
likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax balances are not discounted.
Value Added Tax
The majority of the Group’s income, being rents, is exempt for VAT purposes and this gives
rise to a partial exemption calculation for VAT recovery. Expenditure is therefore primarily
recorded inclusive of VAT with the small proportion that can be recovered credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The balance of VAT payable or recoverable at the
year-end is included as a current liability or asset.
Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to Income Statement over the term of the debt using the effective
interest rate method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying
amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated
capital instrument and amortised over the period of the related loan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets – Social Housing Properties
Housing properties are valued under the historical cost basis and stated at cost less
depreciation and impairment (where applicable).
The cost of housing land and property represents their purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of acquisition which may include an appropriate amount for staff costs
and other costs of managing development.
Directly attributable costs of acquisition includes capitalised interest calculated, on a
proportional basis, using finance costs on borrowing which has been drawn in order to
finance the relevant construction or acquisition. Where housing properties are in the course
of construction, finance costs are only capitalised where construction is on-going and has
not been interrupted or terminated.
Expenditure on major refurbishment to properties is capitalised where the works increase
the net rental stream over the life of the property. An increase in the net rental stream may
arise through an increase in the net rental income, a reduction in future maintenance costs,
or a subsequent extension in the life of the property. Where staff costs are directly
attributable to the major refurbishment works, these are included within the amounts
capitalised. All other repair and replacement expenditure is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Housing properties in the course of construction are included in Property Plant & Equipment
and held at cost less any impairment, and are transferred to completed properties when
ready for letting.
Expenditure on shared ownership properties are split proportionately between current and
fixed assets based on the elements relating to expected first tranche sales. The first tranche
proportion is classified as a current asset and the related sales proceeds are included in
turnover. The remaining element is classed as a fixed asset and included in housing
properties at cost, less any provisions needed for depreciation or impairment.
Gains and losses on disposal of social housing property are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other operating income’ in
the statement of comprehensive income.
Depreciation of housing property
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are completed and ready
for use to ensure that they are depreciated only in periods in which economic benefits are
expected to be consumed.
The cost of all other housing property (net of accumulated depreciation to date and
impairment, where applicable) and components is depreciated over the useful economic
lives of the assets on the following basis:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation of housing property (continued)
Freehold land is not depreciated. Housing properties are split between the structure and the
major components which require periodic replacement. The costs of replacement or
restoration of these components are capitalised and depreciated over the determined
average useful economic life as follows:
Component description
Structure
Kitchen
Bathroom
Roofs
Doors
Boiler
Rewiring
Windows
Central Heating
Lifts
Over cladding
Fire Sprinklers

Economic Useful
Life (years)
100
20
40
70
40
15
40
40
40
30
60
25

Leasehold properties are depreciated over the length of the lease except where the
expected useful economic life of properties is shorter than the lease; when the lease and
building elements are depreciated separately over their expected useful economic lives.
Gap Funding
The Group has been partly funded through Gap Funding Grant from Homes England. This
grant was provided to meet the Decent Homes Standard, regenerate the area and improve
the environment. Such funding is accounted for by reference to the accounting treatment of
the grant eligible costs so funded. The funding of revenue costs is regarded as revenue
income with Turnover, and the funding of capitalised additions to Housing Properties is
carried as deferred income in the Statement of Financial Position and released to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis over the useful economic lives of
the assets for which it was received.
Government grants
Grants received in relation to assets that are presented at historic cost have been accounted
for using the accrual model set out in FRS 102 and the Housing SORP 2018. Grant is carried
as deferred income in the statement of financial position and released to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis over the useful economic lives of the asset for
which it was received. In accordance with Housing SORP 2018 the useful economic life of
the housing property structure has been selected.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Government grants (continued)
Where Social Housing Grant (SHG) funded property is sold, the grant becomes recyclable
and is transferred to a recycled capital grant fund until it is reinvested in a replacement
property. If there is no requirement to recycle or repay the grant on disposal of the assets
any unamortised grant remaining within creditors is released and recognised as income
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Grants relating to revenue are recognised in Income Statement over the same period as the
expenditure to which they relate once performance related conditions have been met.
Grants due from government organisations or received in advance are included as current
assets or liabilities.
Recycled Capital Grant Fund
On the occurrence of certain relevant events, primarily the sale of dwellings, Homes England
can direct the Group to recycle capital grants or to make repayments of the recoverable
amount. The Group adopts a policy of recycling, for which a separate fund is maintained. If
unused within a three year period, it will be repayable to Homes England with interest. Any
unused recycled capital grant held within the recycled capital grant fund, which it is
anticipated will not be used within one year is disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position under "creditors due after more than one year". The remainder is disclosed under
"creditors due within one year".
Disposal Proceeds Fund
Receipts from Right to Acquire (RTA) sales are required to be retained in a ring fenced fund
that can only be used for providing replacement housing. The sales receipts less eligible
expenses are credited to the Disposal Proceeds Fund. Any sales receipts less eligible
expenses held within the disposal proceeds fund, which it is anticipated will not be used
within one year is disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position under "creditors due after
more than one year". The remainder is disclosed under "creditors due within one year".
Investment properties
Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other properties not held for
social benefit or for use in the business. Investment properties, including assets in the
course of construction, are measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently carried
at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is determined annually by an external valuer
and derived from the current market rents and investment property yields for comparable
real estate, adjusted if necessary for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. No depreciation is provided. Changes in fair value are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of fixed assets
The housing property portfolio for the Group is assessed for indicators of impairment at
each accounting date. Where indicators are identified then a detailed assessment is
undertaken to compare the carrying amount of assets or cash generating units for which
impairment is indicated to their recoverable amounts. An option appraisal is carried out to
determine the option which produces the highest net realisable value. Valuations on rental
return or potential sale proceeds are obtained and used to inform the options. The Group
looks at the net realisable value, under the options available, when considering the
recoverable amount for the purposes of impairment assessment. The recoverable amount is
taken to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or value in use of an asset or cash
generating unit. The assessment of value in use may involve considerations of the service
potential of the assets or cash generating units concerned or the present value of future
cash flows to be derived from them appropriately adjusted to account for any restrictions
on their use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Where the recoverable amount of an
asset or cash generating unit is lower than its carrying value an impairment is recorded
through a charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Fixed Asset Investment
Fixed asset investments consist of the historic cost of the investment in the Joint Venture,
the value of which is reviewed on an annual basis.
Tangible fixed assets – Other
Other tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of fixed assets the cost of replacing part
of such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is expected to provide
incremental future benefits to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. Repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Comprehensive
Income during the period in which they are incurred.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives range as follows:
Asset description
Freehold & Leasehold offices
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings
Computers & applications
Plant & equipment
Motor vehicles

Economic Useful Life
(years)
40
4
3
4
4

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since
the last reporting date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other operating income’ in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Stock and Properties held for Sale
Stock is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct
labour and direct development overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated sales
proceeds after allowing for all further costs to completion and selling costs.
Properties developed for outright sale are included in current assets as they are intended to
be sold, at the lower of cost or estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell.
At each reporting date, stock and properties held for sale are assessed for impairment. If
there is evidence of impairment, the carrying value is reduced to its selling price less costs to
complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year
are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Income in other operating expenses.
Recoverable amount of rental and other trade receivables
The Group estimates the recoverable value of rental and other receivables and impairs the
debtor by appropriate amounts. When assessing the amount to impair it reviews the age
profile of the debt, historical collection rates and the class of debt.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Rent and service charge agreements
The Group has made arrangement with individuals and households for arrears payments of
rent and service charges. These arrangements are effectively loans granted at nil interest
rate.
Loans, Investments and short term deposits
All loans, investments and short term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic
financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at
the transaction price less any transaction costs (historical cost), FRS 102 requires that basic
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Loans and investments
that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial
instrument's contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.
Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Leased assets: Lessor
Where assets are leased to a third party analysis of the lease is undertaken to determine if
the lease gives rights approximating to ownership of the asset to the lessee. The group
accounts for lessor transaction based on this analysis:



where rights are granted to the lessee approximating to ownership (finance leases),
the assets are treated as if they have been sold outright.
where rights are not granted to the lessee approximating to ownership (operating
leases), their annual rentals are credited to Statement of Comprehensive Income on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Provision for liabilities
The Group has recognised provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts including
those for major repairs on stock transfers and leaseholders, overage for gap funding and
restructuring.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the Statement of Financial Position date.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material the amount expected to be
required to settle the obligation is recognised at the present value using a discount rate. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period it arises.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is recognised for a possible obligation, for which it is not yet confirmed
that a present obligation exists that could lead to an outflow of resources; or for a present
obligation that does not meet the definitions of a provision or a liability as it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or when a sufficiently
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
A contingent liability exists on grant repayment which is dependent on the disposal of
related property.
Reserves
Income received, and expenditure incurred, for restricted purposes is separately accounted
for within restricted funds. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on assets held by these
funds are also allocated to the fund.
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, the following judgements have had the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.






Indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a
component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future
performance of that unit. The Group have considered the measurement basis to
determine the recoverable amount of assets where there are indicators of impairment
based on EUV-SH or depreciated replacement cost. The members have also considered
impairment based on their assumptions to define cash generating units.
Development Expenditure
The anticipated costs to complete on a development scheme include anticipated
construction cost, effective rate of interest on loans during the construction period, legal
costs and other costs. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement
that development scheme is confirmed, usually when Board approval has taken place
including access to the appropriate funding. In determining whether a project is likely to
cease, management monitors the development and considers if changes have occurred
that result in impairment.
Pension
The critical underlying assumptions in relation to the estimate of the pension defined
benefit scheme obligation include standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate
and anticipated future salary increases. Variations in these assumptions have the ability
to significantly influence the value of the liability or asset recorded and annual defined
benefit expense.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)




Leases
Whether leases entered into by the Group are operating lease or finance leases depends
on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.
Categorisation of housing properties
The Group has undertaken a detailed review of the intended use of all housing
properties. In determining the intended use, the Group has considered if the asset is
held for social benefit or to earn commercial rentals. The Group has determined that
market rented properties are investment properties.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty:
 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their
useful economic lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual
lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on
a number of factors.
For housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on
assessment of the properties. Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these
components.
 Rental and other trade receivables (debtors)
The estimate for receivables relates to the recoverability of the balances outstanding at
the year end. A review is performed on an individual debtor basis to consider whether
each debt is recoverable.
 Financial instruments - borrowings – Negative compensation and funding indemnity
clauses
The Group’s loan facilities have been assessed as basic financial instruments. The
Group’s fixed rate loan facilities allow early payment of the principal and accrued
interest in relation to fixed interest tranches. There is an indemnity clause that requires
the borrower to pay a compensation premium to the lender if market rates have fallen
since the inception of the loan. There is also a clause that means that if market rates
have increased, the borrower (i.e. the Group) would benefit from a compensation
premium.
The Group does not consider that the clause allowing the Group to potentially receive a
compensation premium upon early repayment of some or all of the fixed rate loan
liability makes this financial instrument ‘non-basic’ or ‘other’ as outlined in FRS 102
section 11. The Group considers that this particular loan clause is specifically compliant
with section 11.9b) and 11.9c) of FRS 102 and that the substance of this loan
arrangement was always that it was always intended to be a simple fixed rate loan
arrangement.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)


Fair Value of Investment Properties
The group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The group engaged independent
valuation specialists to determine the fair value at the Statement of Financial position
date. The valuer used a valuation technique based on a discounted cash flow model. The
determined fair value of the investment property is the most sensitive to the estimated
yield as well as the long term vacancy rate. The key assumptions used to determine the
fair value of investment property are further explained in note 15 of the financial
statements.
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus

Group
Turnover

Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche shared ownership
sales
Development costs not capitalised

Non-social housing activities
Place, Skills, Heath & Wellbeing
Market rent lettings
Other

Surplus: Disposal of fixed asset
housing property (note 6)

£ ‘000
54,072

Year ended 31 March 2021
Operating
Operating
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(40,506)
13,566

Cost of
Sales

Turnover

£ ‘000
53,100

Year ended 31 March 2020
Cost of Operating
Operating
Sales
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(39,230)
13,870

1,372

(1,125)

-

247

3,141

(2,804)

-

337

-

-

(447)

(447)

-

-

(1,163)

(1,163)

1,372

(1,125)

(447)

(200)

3,141

(2,804)

(1,163)

(826)

63
3,006
1,111

-

(1,404)
(835)
(272)

(1,341)
2,171
839

49
3,028
950

-

(1,747)
(643)
(396)

(1,698)
2,385
554

4,180

-

(2,511)

1,669

4,027

-

(2,786)

1,241

59,624

(1,125)

(43,464)

15,035

60,268

(2,804)

(43,179)

14,285

4,940

4,266

19,975

18,551

Operating costs as per the SOCI (Page 43) includes operating costs from Note 3 £43,464k and 1st tranche shared ownership costs of sales of £1,125k totalling £44,589k.
Operating surplus as per the SOCI (Page 43) includes surplus on disposal of FA £4,940k.
1.
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus

Association
Turnover

Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche shared ownership
sales
Development costs not
capitalised

Non-social housing activities
Place, Skills, Heath & Wellbeing
Market rent lettings
Other

Surplus: Disposal of fixed asset
housing property (note 6)

£ ‘000
54,072

Year ended 31 March 2021
Cost of Operating Operating
Sales
costs surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(40,455)
13,617

Turnover
£ ‘000
53,100

Year ended 31 March 2020
Cost of Operating Operating
Sales
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(39,192)
13,908

1,372

(1,125)

-

247

3,141

(2,804)

-

337

-

-

(447)

(447)

-

-

(1,163)

(1,163)

1,372

(1,125)

(447)

(200)

3,141

(2,804)

(1,163)

(826)

63
3,006
1,111

-

(1,404)
(835)
(273)

(1,341)
2,171
838

49
3,028
950

-

(1,747)
(643)
(396)

(1,698)
2,385
554

4,180

-

(2,512)

1,668

4,027

-

(2,786)

1,241

59,624

(1,125)

(43,414)

15,085

60,268

(2,804)

(43,141)

14,323

4,940

4,266

20,025

18,589
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus (continued)

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings
Group – Year ended 31 March 2021
General needs housing
Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges
Service charge income
Capital grant amortisation

2021
£ ‘000
48,175
1,993
3,904

2020
£ ‘000
47,508
1,761
3,831

Net general needs housing related income

54,072

53,100

Management
Services
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Major repairs expenditure – Cladding & Fire Safety
Bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other assets
Impairment

15,385
3,270
7,498
1,873
3,812
53
590
6,807
1,002
216

14,741
3,003
7,882
1,971
3,164
423
364
6,477
1,205
-

Operating costs on social housing lettings

40,506

39,230

Operating surplus on social housing lettings

13,566

13,870

1,084

430

Void losses
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus (continued)

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings
Association – Year ended 31 March 2021
General needs housing
Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges
Service charge income
Capital grant amortisation

2021
£ ‘000
48,175
1,993
3,904

2020
£ ‘000
47,508
1,761
3,831

Net general needs housing related income

54,072

53,100

Management
Services
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Major repairs expenditure – Cladding & Fire Safety
Bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other assets
Impairment

15,334
3,270
7,498
1,873
3,812
53
590
6,807
1,002
216

14,703
3,003
7,882
1,971
3,164
423
364
6,477
1,205
-

Operating costs on social housing lettings

40,455

39,192

Operating surplus on social housing lettings

13,617

13,908

1,084

430

Void losses
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4.

Accommodation in management

At the end of the year, units managed for each class of accommodation were as follows:
Group
Social housing
General housing (social rents)
Low Cost home ownership – shared ownership

Non social housing
Market rent (investment properties)

Association
Social housing
General housing (social rents)
Low Cost home ownership – shared ownership

Non social housing
Market rent (investment properties)

5.

2020
No.

Gains
No.

Losses
No.

2021
No.

11,850
88
11,938

9
3
12

(63)
(5)
(68)

11,792
86
11,878

306

9

-

315

2020
No.

Gains
No.

Losses
No.

2021
No.

11,850
88
11,938

9
3
12

(63)
(5)
(68)

11,792
86
11,878

306

9

-

315

Operating surplus

This is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
Operating lease rentals:
- vehicles, office equipment & computers
- land & buildings
Auditor’s remuneration (including VAT)
- for external audit services
- for non-audit services (tax advisory, other)

Group

Association

2021
£’000
6,807
1,002

2020
£’000
6,477
1,205

2021
£’000
6,807
1,002

2020
£’000
6,477
1,205

438
22

449
22

438
22

449
22

54
-

40
-

43
-

10
-
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6.

Surplus on disposal of fixed assets – housing properties

Disposal proceeds
Disposal proceeds attributable to MCC
Carrying value of fixed assets
Grant released to income on disposal
Transfer to Disposal Proceeds Fund

2021
£’000
5,890
(621)
(1,007)
678
-

Group
2020
£’000
7,637
(2,785)
(1,718)
1,132
-

4,940

4,266

Association
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
5,890
7,637
(621)
(2,785)
(1,007)
(1,718)
678
1,132
4,940

4,266

The surplus on disposal of fixed assets has been presented as part of the operating surplus.
7.

Interest receivable and other income

Interest receivable and bank deposits
Net pension fund interest (note 11)

8.

2021
£’000
68
172

Group
2020
£’000
106
120

240

226

2021
£’000
8,784
(626)
12
196
1
70
31

Group
2020
£’000
7,707
(665)
11
670
154
72

8,468

7,949

Association
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
71
109
172
120
243

229

Interest payable and similar charges

Loans and bank overdrafts
Capitalised Interest
Bank charges
Amortisation of Financing Costs
Interest on Disposal Proceeds Fund
Net pension fund interest (note 11)
Interest on SHPS liability (note 11)

Association
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
8,899
8,105
(626)
(665)
11
11
188
484
1
70
154
31
72
8,574

8,161

.
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9.

Gift aid

Gift aid received from subsidiary undertakings

2021
£’000
-

Group
2020
£’000
-

-

-

Association
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
237
184
237

184

A gift aid payment of £61,543 (2020: £105,826) was received on 18 December 2020 in
respect of the period ended 31 March 2019 from One Manchester Developments Limited.
A gift aid payment of £175,123 (2020: £77,846) was received on 18 December 2020 in
respect of the period ended 31 March 2019 from One Manchester Treasury Limited.

10.

Group & Association Employees, Board members and executive directors

All employees of One Manchester Group are employed on joint contracts of employment
for all companies within the Group and at any time may be engaged on work for any of the
Group’s companies.
Employees
Average monthly number of employees expressed in full time
equivalents:

2021

2020

Administration
Neighbourhood Services
Property Services

No.
83
154
179

No.
74
149
175

Total Full time equivalents based on a 35 hour working week:

416

398

2021
£ ‘000
13,831
1,290
2,626

2020
£ ‘000
12,764
1,187
3,045

17,747

16,996

Employee costs:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
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10.

Group & Association Employees, Board members and executive directors
(continued)

Salary bandings for all Employees (including Directors) earning over £60,000 as at the end of
March 2021 was as follows:
Bands
£60,000-£69,999

2021
10

2020
8

£70,000-£79,999

5

6

£80,000-£89,999

-

-

£90,000-£99,999

1

-

£100,000-£109,999

2

1

£110,000-£119,999

-

2

£130,000-£139,999

-

-

£140,000-£149,999

1

-

£150,000-£159,999

-

1

19

18

2021
£ ‘000

2020
£ ‘000

491

608

81

85

149

137
23

Board members and executive directors

Aggregate remuneration paid to Directors (including Pension
contributions)
Aggregate remuneration paid to Board members
Emoluments paid to the highest paid Director, Chief Executive
excluding pension contributions
Former CEO
Current CEO

The current Chief Executive that joined in January 2020 is a member of the Social Housing
Pension Scheme (SHPS). They were both an ordinary member of their respective pension
schemes and no enhanced or special terms apply. The Company does not make any further
contribution to an individual pension arrangement for the Chief Executive.
Directors comprise the Chief Executive and Executive Directors as listed within the Company
Information section at the front of the financial statements.
These individuals are those considered by the group to be the key management personnel.
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10. Group & Association Employees, Board members and executive directors (continued)
Board Member

Graham Aitken

Remuneration
for the period
to 31 March
2021
6,134

One Manchester
Board

Audit & Risk
Committee

Place Committee

X

X

Appointed
27/1/21

7,251
5,309

X

John Atkins
Ber Bosveld (for Woodfield
Management BV)
Alison Gordon
(Term of Office ended 23rd
September 2020)
Steven Mole

4,744

Stood down
23/9/20

15,058

Resigned 26/5/21

Charles Geoffrey Bean
Nadim Ahmad

4,293
6,134

X

Emily Rowles (Co-optee)
Suzanne Richards
John Hughes (Vice Chair &
Senior Independent Director)
Angela Robinson
Thomas Fenton
Slawomir Pawlik

6,692

X
X
X

7,258
7,809
6,143

X
X
X

Lyndsey McDonald

6,134

X

-

Appointed
26/5/21
Appointed
23/9/20

Yashar Turgut (Chair)
Susan Webster

2,695

Equality,
Diversity &
Inclusion
Committee

Stood down
23/9/20
Resigned
26/5/21

X
Resigned 27/1/21

Remuneration &
Governance
Committee

X
Appointed
27/1/21

Resigned 27/1/21
Stood down
23/9/20

Growth
Committee

Resigned 26/5/21

X

Appointed
17/3/21

X
X

X
X
X

X
Appointed
27/1/21
Appointed
27/1/21

X
Resigned 27/1/21
Resigned 27/1/21

X

Appointed
27/1/21
Ex Officio 26/5/21

Appointed
27/1/21

Appointed
27/1/21
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11.

Pensions - Group

Social Housing Pension Scheme
The group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multiemployer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The
Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004, which
came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the
Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting
Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in
the UK.
The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at 30
September 2017. This valuation revealed a deficit of £1,522m. A Recovery Plan has been put
in place with the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September 2026.
The next valuation has an effective date of 30 September 2020, final results are expected in
August / September 2021.
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the company is
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are
unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme.
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme.
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Period Ended 31 March 2021

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2020
Service costs
Current service cost
Expenses
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Scheme experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2021

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000
9,674
9,674

(11,127)
(11,127)

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
9,674
(11,127)
(1,453)

-

(299)
(10)
(309)

(299)
(10)
(309)

228
228

(259)
(259)

228
(259)
(31)

555
(335)
220

335
335

555
555

1,251
-

(49)
(3,921)
50
-

(49)
(3,921)
1,301
-

1,251

(3,920)

(2,669)

(15,280)
(15,280)

11,373
(15,280)
(3,907)

11,373
11,373
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Period Ended 31 March 2020

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2019
Service costs
Current service cost
Expenses
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Scheme experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000
8,977
8,977

12,087
12,087

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
8,977
(12,087)
(3,110)

-

371
8

(371)
(8)

-

379

(379)

220
220

292
292

220
(292)
(72)

575
(130)
445

(130)
(130)

575
575

32

(100)
(1,763)
362

100
1,763
(330)

32

(1,501)

1,533

9,674
9,674

11,127
11,127

9,674
(11,127)
(1,453)

75

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Financial assumptions
31 March 31 March
2021
2020
% per
% per
annum
annum
2.22
2.33
3.20
2.51
2.87
1.51
3.87
2.51
75% of
75% of
Maximum Maximum
allowance allowance

Discount rate
Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)
Salary growth
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

Mortality assumptions
The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2021 imply the following life expectancies:

Retiring in 2021
Males
Females
Retiring in 2041
Males
Females

2021
No. of years

2020
No. of years

21.6
23.5

21.5
23.3

22.9
25.1

22.9
24.5
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Assets

Absolute Return
Alternative Risk Premia
Corporate Bond Fund
Credit Relative Value
Distressed Opportunities
Emerging Markets Debt
Fund of Hedge Funds
Global Equity
High Yield
Infrastructure
Insurance-Linked Securities
Liability Driven Investment
Liquid Credit
Long Lease Property
Net Current Assets
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit
Opportunistic Credit
Private Debt
Property
Risk Sharing
Secured Income
Total assets

31 March
2021
(£000s)
628
428
672
358
328
459
1
1,813
341
758
273
2,891
136
223
69
289
312
271
236
414
473
11,373

31 March
2020
(£000s)
504
677
552
265
186
293
6
1,415
720
297
3,211
4
167
41
234
195
213
327
367
9,674

None of the fair values of the assets shown above includes any direct investments in the
employer’s own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used
by, the employer.
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Scheme assets and liabilities

2021
£ ‘000
11,373
(15,280)

2020
£ ‘000
9,674
(11,127)

(3,907)

(1,453)

2021
£ ‘000
299
10

2020
£ ‘000
371
8

309

379

228
(259)

220
(292)

(31)

(72)

Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions - liabilities
Scheme experience (Obligations)
Scheme experience (Assets)

2021
£ ‘000
(49)
(3,921)
50
1,251

2020
£ ‘000
100
1,763
(362)
32

Net actuarial movements in other comprehensive income

(2,669)

1,533

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Net defined benefit liability

Amounts charged/(credited) to income statement
Current service cost
Expenses
Amounts charged to operating costs
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost of scheme liabilities
Net interest (credit)

Amounts charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF)
The GMPF is a multi-employer scheme, administered by Tameside Metropolitan Borough
Council (“TMBC”) under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme, a
defined benefit scheme.
The Group contributes to three schemes within the GMPF as detailed below:
GMPF Scheme 1
Employees participating in this scheme are those, which transferred from Manchester City
Council (MCC) in 2003 with the transfer of housing stock to the Company at that time. MCC
has entered into an agreement with TMBC and the Company whereby the contributions
payable by the Company are set in relation to the current service cost only (being based on
contribution rates applied to MCC employees). In accordance with the provisions set out in
FRS 102, the scheme is treated as a defined contribution scheme as the Company’s
contributions are linked to those of another employer and the actuary has indicated that it
is not possible to allocate assets and liabilities to the Company’s staff on a consistent and
reliable basis given the degree of cross-subsidy that exists and the relative size of the
Company compared with other members of the scheme. The income statement charge for
the period represents the employer contributions payable.
The Company paid contributions at the rate of 19.1% during the accounting period. The
employers’ contribution to the scheme in the period amounted to £74,974 (2020: £73,334).
Member contributions vary between 5.8% and 6.8%. Future contribution rates will be set at
the same level as MCC.
GMPF Scheme 2
Employees participating in this scheme are those that transferred from Manchester City
Council (MCC) on 30 March 2009 with the transfer of East Manchester housing stock to the
Company and those new starters between the 2003 transfer and the 2009 transfer. The
most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 31 March 2019 by a qualified
independent actuary.
Expected contributions for the year 2021/22 are £260,000 (2020/21: £268,000).
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 2
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net (Liability)/Asset
for year ended 31 March 2021
Period Ended 31 March 2021

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2021

41,534
41,534

33,964
33,964

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
41,534
(33,964)
7,570

-

464
464

(464)
(464)

948
948

776
776

948
(776)
172

89
274
(929)
41,916

89
(929)
34,364

274
7,552

7,872

8,160
152
(344)
-

(8,160)
(152)
344
-

7,872

7,968

(7,968)

49,788
49,788

42,332
42,332

49,788
(42,332)
7,456
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 2
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net (Liability)/Asset
for year ended 31 March 2020

Period Ended 31 March 2020

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2019
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Departicipation debt released
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020

46,082
46,082

40,893
40,893

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
46,082
(40,893)
5,189

-

589

(589)

-

-

(589)

1,101
1,101
1,101

981
981
1,570

1,101
(981)
120
(469)

89
220
(894)
46,598

89
(894)
41,658

220
4,940

-

(3,017)
(1,229)
(3,448)

3,017
1,229
3,448

(5,064)

-

(5,064)

(5,064)

(7,694)

2,630

41,534
41,534

33,964
33,964

41,534
(33,964)
7,570
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 3
Employees participating in this scheme are employees of City South Manchester Housing
Trust prior to the merger. The most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at
31 March 2019 by a qualified independent actuary.
Expected contributions for the year 2021/22 are £560,000 (2020/21: £655,000).
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net Liability for year
ended 31 March 2021
Period Ended 31 March 2021

Assets
£’000

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2020
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service cost
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit
obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in profit
or (loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2021

35,564
35,564

Obligations Net (liability)
£’000
/ asset
£’000
35,564
38,422
(38,422)
38,422
(2,858)

-

954
40
994

(984)
(40)
(994)

818
-

888

818
(888)

818
818

888
1,882

(70)
(1,064)

214
590
(746)
36,440

214
(746)
39,772

590
(3,332)

6,789

161
11,217
(394)
-

(161)
(11,217)
394
6,789

6,789

10,984

(4,195)

43,229
43,229

50,756
50,756

43,229
(50,756)
(7,527)
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 3
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net Liability for year
ended 31 March 2020
Period Ended 31 March 2020

Assets
£’000

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2019
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service cost
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit
obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in profit
or (loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020

38,515
38,515

Obligations Net (liability)
£’000
/ asset
£’000
38,515
44,586
(44,586)
44,586
(6,071)

-

1,393
1,393

(1,393)
(1,393)-

929
-

1,083

929
(1,083)

929
929

1,083
2,476

(154)
(1,547)

245
711
(700)
39,700

245
(700)
46,607

711
(6,907)

(4,136)

(1,245)
(4,007)
(2,933)
-

1,245
4,007
2,933
(4,136)

(4,136)

(8,185)

4,049

35,564

38,422
38,422

35,564
(38,422)
(2,858)

35,564
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

Sum of GMPF Schemes 2 and 3
Scheme assets and liabilities

2021
£ ‘000
93,017
(93,088)

2020
£ ‘000
77,098
(72,386)

(71)

4,712

Current service cost

2021
£ ‘000
1,418

2020
£ ‘000
1,982

Amounts charged to operating costs

1,418

1,982

(1,766)
1,664

(2,030)
2,064

(102)

34

2021
£ ‘000
313
19,377
(738)
(14,661)

2020
£ ‘000
(2,474)
(7,024)
(6,381)
9,200

4,291

(6,679)

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Net defined benefit asset

Amounts charged/(credited) to income statement

Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost of scheme liabilities
Net interest charge / (credit)

Amounts charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions - liabilities
Other experiences gains/losses - liabilities
Return on net assets excluding amounts in net interest
Net actuarial movements in other comprehensive income
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Schemes 2 and 3 Key Assumptions
Financial assumptions

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases

31 March 2021
% per annum
2.3
2.7
1.9

31 March 2020
% per annum
2.3
2.7
1.9

Mortality assumptions
The post-retirement mortality assumptions adopted to value the benefit obligation at 31
March 2019 is based on the CMI2013 model (2018: CMI2013 model). The assumed life
expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Current pensioners:
Males
Females
Future Pensioners:
Males
Females

2021
No. of years

2020
No. of years

20.5
23.1

20.5
23.1

22.0
25.0

22.0
25.0

Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets

Equities
Bonds
Properties
Cash

2021
%
69
15
7
9

2020
%
69
15
7
9
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12.

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

The association did not suffer a tax charge during the period due to its charitable status and
the charitable nature of its activities.
The group tax charge was £nil (2020: £Nil). There was no deferred tax charge or balances in
the current or prior period.
2021

2020

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax

£ ‘000
11,839

£ ‘000
12,673

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities at standard CT rate of 19% (2019:
19%)
Deferred tax not recognised
Charitable income not chargeable to tax
Over Provision in Previous Year

2,249
(2,249)
-

2,408
(2,408)
-

-

-

Current tax reconciliation – Group

Actual current and total taxation charge / (Credit)
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13.

Tangible fixed assets – housing properties
Group
Social
Housing
Shared
housing
properties
ownership
properties
for letting
properties
held for
under completed
letting construction
£ ’000
£ ’000
£’000

Cost
At 1 April 2020
Additions
Schemes
Completed
Works to existing
properties
Impairment
Disposals

Shared
ownership
properties
Total
under
housing
construction properties
£ ’000
£ ’000

231,457
25,085

37,748
20,596
(25,085)

3,569
2,462

2,778
5,981
(2,462)

275,552
26,577
-

4,894

-

-

-

4,894

(1,653)
(1,994)

-

(208)

-

(1,653)
(2,202)

257,789

33,259

5,823

6,297

303,168

67,126
6,718
(908)

-

60
89
-

-

67,186
6,807
(908)

(923)

-

-

-

(923)

At 31 March 2021

72,013

-

149

-

72,162

Net book value
At 31 March 2021

185,776

33,259

5,674

6,297

231,006

At 31 March 2020

164,331

37,748

3,552

2,735

208,366

At 31 March 2021
Depreciation
At 1 April 2020
Charged in year
Eliminated on
disposal
Eliminated on
Impairment
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13.

Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (continued)
Association

Social
housing
properties
held for
letting
£ ’000

Housing
properties
for letting
under
construction
£ ’000

Shared
ownership
properties
completed

231,503
25,089
4,880

37,831
20,725
(25,089)
-

3,569
2,463
-

2,861
5,993
(2,463)
-

275,764
26,718
4,880

(1,653)
(1,994)

-

(208)

-

(1,653)
(2,202)

257,825

33,467

5,824

6,391

303,507

Depreciation
At 1 April 2020
Charged in year
Eliminated on disposal
Eliminated on
Impairment

67,126
6,718
(908)
(923)

-

60
89
-

-

67,186
6,807
(908)
(923)

At 31 March 2021

72,013

-

149

-

72,162

Net book value
At 31 March 2021

185,812

33,467

5,675

6,391

231,345

At 31 March 2020

164,377

37,831

3,552

2,818

208,578

Cost
At 1 April 2020
Additions
Schemes Completed
Works to existing
properties
Impairment
Disposals
At 31 March 2021

£ ’000

Shared
ownership
properties
Total
under
housing
construction properties
£ ’000
£ ’000
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Group Housing Properties Book Value net of depreciation and
impairment

2021
£ ‘000

2020
£ ‘000

Freehold land and buildings
Long leasehold land and buildings

192,804
38,202

188,372
19,994

Total

231,006

208,366

Amounts capitalised
Amounts charged to income and expenditure account

2021
£ ‘000
4,894
3,705

2020
£ ‘000
4,615
3,587

Total

8,599

8,202

Group expenditure on works to existing properties

14.

Group and Association Tangible fixed assets - other
Freehold
Furniture Computers Plant and
offices fixtures and and office equipment
fittings equipment
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000

Motor
Vehicles

Total

£’000

£ ‘000

Cost
At 1 April 2020
Additions

11,761
2

622
36

3,616
1,045

147
19

18
-

16,164
1,102

At 31 March 2021

11,763

658

4,661

166

18

17,266

Depreciation
At 1 April 2020
Charged in year

3,314
245

258
178

2,803
535

81
40

13
4

6,469
1,002

At 31 March 2021

3,559

436

3,338

121

17

7,471

Net book value
At 31 March 2021

8,204

222

1,322

45

1

9,794

At 31 March 2020

8,447

364

813

66

5

9,695
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15.

Group Tangible fixed assets – investment properties

At 1 April 2020
Additions
Disposal
Schemes Completed
Revaluation
At 31 March 2021

15.

Market Rent
properties
held for
letting
£ ’000
39,068
(332)
1,888
121

Investment
Properties under
construction
£ ’000
(49)
5,209
(1,888)
(29)

Total
£ ’000
39,019
5,209
(332)
92

40,745

3,243

43,988

Market Rent
properties
held for
letting
£ ’000
38,907
(332)
2,049
121

Investment
Properties under
construction
£ ’000
373
4,948
(2,049)
(29)

Total
£ ’000
39,280
4,948
(332)
92

40,745

3,243

43,988

Association Tangible fixed assets – investment properties

At 1 April 2020
Additions
Disposals
Schemes Completed
Revaluation
At 31 March 2021

The Group’s completed investment properties are valued annually on 31 March at fair value,
determined by an independent, professionally qualified valuer.
The valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors' (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. Investment properties are held at open
market value subject to existing tenancies.
The surplus on revaluation of investment property arising of £92k (2020: surplus of £1,845k)
has been credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year. The historic cost
of investment properties is £36,512k (2020: £31,636k).
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16.

Investments in subsidiaries

The following are wholly owned subsidiaries of One Manchester Limited:
Name

Country of Proportion Nature of Business
incorporation of voting
rights
One Manchester Treasury Limited
UK
100%
Investment company - funding
One Manchester Developments
UK
100%
Property development
Limited
One Manchester Property Limited
UK
100%
Property development
The registered address of all companies are Lovell House, Archway 6, Hulme, Manchester,
M15 5RN.

17.

Stock Group

Shared ownership properties:
- Under construction
Materials stock

2021
£ ‘000

2020
£ ‘000

3,862
77

1,243
178

3,939

1,421

2021
£ ‘000

2020
£ ‘000

3,879
77

1,243
178

3,956

1,421

Stock Association

Shared ownership properties:
- Under construction
Materials stock
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18.

Debtors

Due within one year
Rent and service charges receivable
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Net rent and service charges receivable
Other debtors
Other taxation / social security debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

19.

2021
£’000

Group
2020
£’000

Association
2021
2020
£’000
£’000

6,258
(3,234)

4,768
(2,688)

6,258
(3,234)

4,768
(2,688)

3,024
1,519
59
1,007

2,080
1,224
12
2,115

3,024
1,519
1,007

2,080
1,224
889

5,609

5,431

5,550

4,193

Fixed Asset Investments

One Manchester Property Limited investment in Joint Venture

Group
2021
£’000
297

2020
£’000
50

This JV investment is funded by the intercompany loan referred to on page 46.
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20.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Rent and service charges received in advance
RTB Sharing agreements – MCC Council
Accruals and deferred income
Other taxation / social security creditors
Disposal Proceeds Fund (note 22a)
Other creditors
Deferred capital grant (note 23)
Loans payable within one year (note 24)
Amounts owed to group undertakings

2021
£’000
4,224
2,734
653
5,649
783
651
3,868
3,831
-

Group
2020
£’000
2,172
2,511
1,575
7,328
689
543
3,761
3,393
-

22,393

21,972

Association
2021
2020
£’000
£’000
2,234
1,613
2,734
2,511
653
1,575
4,335
4,732
783
690
625
517
3,868
3,761
6,400
4,559
21,632

19,958

Amounts owed to group undertakings is interest free and repayable on demand.

21.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group

Debt (note 24)
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Less unamortised Arrangement Fees
Deferred capital grant (note 23)
Recycled Capital Grant Fund > 1 yr (note 22b)

Association

2021
£’000
181,220
(2,491)
105,658
202

2020
£’000
152,551
(2,692)
106,373
48

2021
2020
£’000
£’000
181,220 152,551
(2,491) (2,692)
105,658 106,373
202
48

284,589

256,280

284,589 256,280
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22a.

Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF)
Group

At 1 April 2020 / 2019
Additions
Interest
Utilised
Balance at 31 March 2021 / 2020

Association

2021
£’000
-

2020
£’000
714

2021
£’000
-

2020
£’000
714

-

(714)

-

(714)

-

-

-

-

Amounts within the Disposal Proceeds fund will become repayable to Homes England if they
are not utilised within a period of three years from the date of disposal.
22b.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund (RCGF)

At 1 April 2020 / 2019
Additions
Interest
Utilised
Balance at 31 March 2021 / 2020

Group

Association

2021
£’000
48
153
1
-

2020
£’000
30
18
-

2021
£’000
48
153
1
-

2020
£’000
30
18
-

202

48

202

48
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23.

Deferred capital grant – Group

Net deferred capital grant at start of year
Total Grant received
Less Grant received in advance
Grant disposals
Grant Impairment Disposal
Grant amortisation

Net deferred capital grant due in less than one year
Net deferred capital grant due in more than one year

2021
£’000
110,134
4,653
(843)
(514)
(3,904)

2020
£’000
104,394
11,006
(1,435)
(3,831)

109,526

110,134

3,868
105,658

3,761
106,373

109,526

110,134

Gross accumulated capital grant received is £173,888k (2020: £169,235k). Total
accumulated revenue grant received is £41,966k (2020: £41,909k).
24.

Debt analysis

On 1 April 2015, following the creation of the One Manchester Group loans within the
groups two registered providers were repaid in full and redrawn in the name of One
Manchester Treasury Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of One Manchester Limited, the
group parent. Note no payment was physically made and debt was transferred by the
lenders.
Group

Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

Association

2021
£’000
3,831
12,153
27,148
141,919

2020
2021
£’000
£’000
3,393
3,393
3,831 12,153
32,935 27,148
115,785 141,919

2020
£’000
3,393
3,831
32,935
115,785

185,051

155,944 184,613

155,944

Security
The bank loans are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the group and by fixed
charges on individual properties.
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25.

Net Debt Reconciliation
As at 31 Mar
2020

Cash flows

Other NonCash
Movements

As at 31
Mar 2021

40,038
-

10,455
-

-

50,493
-

40,038

10,455

-

50,493

(3,393)
(155,943)

(438)
(25,276)

-

(3,831)
(181,219)

(159,336)

(25,714)

-

(185,050)

(119,298)

(15,259)

-

(134,557)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash
Overdrafts
Cash Equivalents

Borrowings
Debt Due < 1 Year
Debt Due > 1 Year

TOTAL

26.

Non-equity share capital

The shares provide members with the right to vote at general meetings, but do not provide
any rights to dividends or distributions on a winding up.
27.

Group financial commitments

Capital expenditure commitments were as follows:
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted

2021
£ ‘000
46,865
10,963

2020
£ ‘000
31,798
31,377

57,828

63,175

2021
£ ‘000
24,916
8,393
2,560
21,959

2020
£ ‘000
32,500
1,661
4,621
24,393

57,828

63,175

Capital commitments for the Group will be funded as follows:

Existing loan facilities
First tranche and outright sale of properties
Grants
Existing reserves
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28.

Group operating leases

The association had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set
out below:
2021
£ ‘000
Motor Vehicles, office equipment and computers expiring:
Within one year
One to five years

234
23

438
226

257

664

2021
£ ‘000
Land & Buildings expiring:
Within one year
One to five years
Beyond five years

29.

2020
£ ‘000

2020
£ ‘000

22
52
14

22
65
23

88

110

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities requiring disclosure at 31 March 2021 (2020: £Nil).
30.

Financial Instruments - Group

The financial instruments may be analysed as follows:
2021
£ ‘000
Financial Assets
Financial Assets measured at historical cost:
- Trade receivables
- Other receivables
- Current asset investments
- Cash and cash equivalents

2020
£ ‘000

3,024
2,357
50,493

2,080
2,384
40,038

55,874

44,502
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30.

Financial Instruments – Group (continued)
2021
£ ‘000

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
- Loans payable
Financial liabilities measured at historical cost:
- Trade creditors
- Other creditors

2020
£ ‘000

185,050

155,944

6,352
120,923

2,172
122,139

312,326

280,255

Financial assets measured at historical cost comprise trade debtors, other debtors, and
amounts owed by associated undertakings.
Financial liabilities measured at historical cost comprise trade creditors and other creditors.
The Group’s loan facilities are sterling denominated. The interest rate profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities at 31 March was:
2021
£ ’000

2020
£ ’000

Floating rate
Fixed rate

10,550
174,500

1,943
154,000

Total (note 24)
Less: Arrangement fees

185,050
(2,491)

155,943
(2,692)

Total

182,559

153,251

The floating rate financial liabilities comprise bank loans and overdrafts that bear interest at rates
based on the three-month LIBOR.
Fixed rate loan rates range from 2.29% to 7.08% and the average rate during the year was 4.54%.
The debt maturity profile is shown in note 24.
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31.

Related parties

The Board includes three tenant members who hold tenancy agreements on normal terms and
cannot use their position to their advantage. The rent charged for the year was £4,032.50 for the
first tenant and the tenant had a credit balance of £615.21 at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
credit balance of £403.11). The rent charged for the year to the second tenant was £4,418.50 and
the tenant had a credit balance of £468.87 at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: credit balance of
£343.37). The rent charged for the year to the third tenant was £3,549.00 and the tenant had a
credit balance of £386.86 at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: credit balance of £261.36).
Two members of the Board (one who is co-opted) are local authority appointed and are
councillors. All transactions with the council are on normal commercial terms and the councillors
are not able to use their position to their advantage.
One Manchester Limited has 14.3% control over JV North and has paid £34,740 (2020:
£25,194) in costs during the year. There were no year-end balances with the company (2020:
£Nil).
The Company provides management services, other services and loans to its subsidiaries. The
company also receives charges from its subsidiaries.
Intra-group management fees are receivable by the Company from its subsidiaries to cover the
running costs the Company incurs on its behalf in managing the subsidiaries.
Intra-group interest is charged by the Company’s subsidiary One Manchester Treasury
Limited to Group subsidiaries at the rates incurred by the Group on its bank loans plus a
margin of 0.1% £88,190 (2020: 0.1% £82,960).
One Manchester Developments Limited was paid £18,090,000 (2020: £10,199,000) for
construction services and related costs by One Manchester Limited. One Manchester
Developments is owed £2,264,000 (2020: £1,140,000) by One Manchester Limited at the year
end.
One Manchester Property Limited was paid £247,000 (2020: £50,000) by One Manchester
Limited for investment into the Joint Venture. One Manchester Property Limited was owed
£6,735 (2020:£3,279) at the end of the year.
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32.

Post Balance Sheet Events

There were no notifiable Post Balance Sheet Events as at 31st March 2021.
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